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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company” together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Year”) in that the Group has reduced its operating loss by
over 80%, despite having incurred a non-recurrent corporate expense
(professional fees and other expenses related to the mandatory general
offer announced on 25 July 2018) during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in hotel operations and hotel
consultations and management services and other related businesses.
During the Year, the Group’s performance in hotel operations improved
significantly as compared to that of last year, mainly because the
opening of the Hazens East Resort in June 2018 increased the number
of available rooms of the Group, while effective marketing plans adopted
by the Group’s sales team also helped improve the performance of hotel
operations. As a result, the Group reported a strong growth record in
revenue during the Year as compared to that of last year. Furthermore,
the management enacted the operation improvement plan and cost
saving policy during the Year. These initiatives helped the Group
significantly minimize losses during the Year as compared to that of last
year.

In 2018, the Group achieved a milestone in its business development.
In June 2018, the official opening of the Hazens East Resort which
is situated in Xunliaowan of Huizhou and the first resort hotel under
the management of the Group, helped expand the Group’s scale and
business portfolio. Following the completion of the mandatory general
offer in respect of the shares of the Company in September 2018, the
new management has brought in with their extensive backgrounds and
experiences. By formulating effective strategies and taking responsive
actions, the Group has realigned its own business development. Under
the established strategies, the Group broadened revenue from its major
business operations, utilized the network of the new management, and
optimized the asset portfolio and resource allocation. While keeping
the existing hotel operations in order, the Group focused on improving
its operating and service quality. Despite the increased burden and
responsibilities on the new management, the Group continued to deepen
its system reform under the innovative model, allowing its employees to
grow with the Company. Both the financial performance of the Group and
the morale of the employees proved the correctness of the development
strategy implemented by the Group which increases revenue, narrows
losses, and initially delivers noticeable results.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

PROSPECTS

The Board are confident that the tourism industry in China will remain on
a strong growth path and will continue to strive for improvements in the
operating results of the Group and to expand our operations. Further, the
development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, such
as the completion of High Speed Rail (Hong Kong Section), Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, and other sizeable infrastructure projects, will
attract new tourist groups despite an ongoing competitive domestic hotel
market, and it is expected that the hotel service market will continue to
embrace opportunities in the upcoming year.

On top of consolidating the current business operations, the Group
will continue to focus on core businesses by developing the principal
businesses related to hotel operations, and commit itself to improving its
service standard and profitability. Besides utilizing its current strengths to
boost its brand power, the Group will actively tap into the network of the
new management for hotel acquisition projects, management contracts
and co-operative or joint ventures projects to strengthen its operation
scale. In exercising caution over project investments, the Group doubles
down its efforts to expand its core business segment. Seizing investment
opportunities in the prospective markets, the Group will identify new
sources of profitability and growth to safeguard the sustainability of the
Group. On the other hand, the Group will continue to ride on the policies
in effect during this year to continuously optimize its internal procedures
and enhance management efficiency. To further achieve breakthroughs in
the development momentum, the Group will facilitate the organic growth
of its intrinsic corporate values and enhance its business vitality. The
objectives will be to improve revenue, operating profit and the number of
rooms under management.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I, acting on behalf of the Board, express my utmost appreciation to
our shareholders, customers, and business partners for their long-
term confidence in and support for the Group, as well as my gratitude
towards the management and our employees for their commitment and
contribution to our growth.

Yuan Fuer
Chairman
On Behalf of the Board

29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWRE DM

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Change of Controlling Shareholders

On 18 July 2018, Hehui International Development Limited (“Hehui” or
“the Current Controlling Shareholder”) entered into a share purchase
agreement with, among others, China Medical Overseas Limited
(“China Medical” or “the Former Controlling Shareholder”) to purchase
an aggregate of 269,019,010 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 60% of the then total issued shares of the Company at
that time, for a total cash consideration of HK$300,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$1.1152 per share).

In August 2018, pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”), Hehui made a mandatory unconditional
general cash offer (the “Offer”) to acquire all the issued shares of the
Company at an offer price of HK$1.1152 per offer share.

The Offer was closed on 5 September 2018, whereby Hehui received
valid acceptances in respect of a total of 52,561,500 offer shares,
representing approximately 11.72% of the then entire issued share
capital of the Company at that time. Together with the shares
previously purchased from China Medical, Hehui had acquired a total
of 321,580,510 shares, representing approximately 71.72% of the then
entire issued share capital of the Company at that time.

Business and operational review

The Board are pleased with the results of operations for the Year in that
the Group has reduced its operating loss by over 80%, despite having
incurred a non-recurrent corporate expense (professional fees and other
expenses related to the Offer announced on 25 July 2018) during the
Year.

The Group is principally engaged in hotel operations and hotel
consultations and management services and other related businesses.
The Group is also involved in the money lending business. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group has 4 leased-and-operated hotels
under operation, including the resort hotel located in Huizhou newly
acquired during the Year. Other than the money lending business, the
financial services and asset management business were discontinued
during the year. Revenue from hotel operations during the Year was
mainly derived from rental of hotel rooms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRON

During the Year, under the strategy implemented by the new
management, the Group’s financial figures have improved as a whole.
With respect to the hotel operation, for the year ended 31 December
2018, the revenue was HK$45,547,168, representing an increase of
approximately 180% as compared with revenue of HK$16,281,691
for the same period of the last financial year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the following two aspects:

Improvement of existing hotel performance:

We classify hotel customers into three categories: (i) customers
introduced by travel agencies, (ii) corporate customers with
contractual arrangements and (iii) individual customers. To address
all sorts of challenges, our sales team has developed effective
market plans, including entering into cooperation agreements
with tourism intermediaries and providing more attractive
commissions or agency fees to improve incentive for introduction
from intermediaries. In addition, we also took the initiative to
contact various corporate customers to identify their service needs
and proactively provide them with assistance solutions. Indeed,
to increase the number of individual customers, we have also
developed various loyalty programs such as re-activating the sales
of membership cards to consolidate our individual customer base.

Our effective sales and marketing schemes have introduced a new
type of customer source for the Group during the Year, exerting
positive impacts on sales. In addition, the impact of the renovation
works completed in the previous year began to fully manifest itself
during the Year, reversing the unsatisfactory performance of the
flagship Nanshan Hotel in Shenzhen in past years and providing
strong support for the Group’s existing hotel business.

Apart from the above, at the end of this year, the Group commences
a comprehensive renovation at Baoan Hotel. With reference to the
experience at Nanshan Hotel, subsequent to the renovation, room
rates, occupancy rate and the hotel’s revenue can be boosted
and thus improving the performance of Baoan Hotel and providing
assurance to the sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRON

Development of new hotels:

In addition to working on improving existing hotel business, we also
studies and analyzes other potential projects and hotel locations
and develops various mergers and acquisitions and hotel launch
proposals in an attempt to accelerate the Group’s development,
expand its size, and increase profits so as to reward investors’
support. During the Year, the Group successfully developed a new
hotel project. As disclosed in the Group’s announcement dated
30 April 2018, the Group successfully acquired the resort hotels
located in Huizhou to increase the number of available rooms and
expand the size of the Group’s hotel business. The Group will
continue to look for investment and enhancement opportunities, and
explore various hotel accommodation and hotel consultations and
management services in Mainland China, Hong Kong or overseas to
optimize the overall hotel assets structure and improve efficiency.

Indeed, in addition to the above two main reasons, the Group
had in place a series of operation improvement schemes during
the Year such as enhancing hotel facilities and implementing staff
performance programs to improve service quality, customers’
satisfaction, and employees’ morale in order to increase revenue
and improve performance in all aspects.

In addition to frontline operation of hotels, we also took important
actions to control back office and other expenses, including
reviewing human resource efficiency and making corresponding
adjustments, relocating the Hong Kong office to reduce rental
space, senior management agreeing to lower their remuneration
so as to share the difficulties faced by the Group and successfully
obtaining a waiver regarding the interest expense of shareholder
borrowings from the Former Controlling Shareholder, so as to
maximize the Group’s benefits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

The following is an update on the Group’s existing hotels:
Huizhou Hotel

The Group has successfully acquired two hotels in Huizhou on 30 April
2018 in two separate blocks and has managed these two hotels as a
single hotel since its official opening on 1 June 2018. Huizhou Hotel is a
hotel situated at Xunliaowan of Huizhou, which is easily accessible as it
is located near the Pearl River Delta neighbouring Shenzhen and Hong
Kong and has direct flights to other cities in the PRC. Xunliaowan offers
our guests the opportunities to enjoy a beach vacation in the region,
become a beach bum, spend their days lazing on the sand and take
in the sun followed by a dip in the clear waters. Also, with both historic
scenic spots and the coast along the Pacific Ocean, Huizhou attracts
domestic and foreign tourists to spend their holiday in the region.

The Group looks forward to the increasing number of guests visiting the
region which will boost up the performance of Huizhou Hotel in the long
run. As reported by Huizhou Airport, the number of guests travelling to
Huizhou in 2017 via Huizhou Airport is approximately 960,000 which
is 75% more than that in 2016 where the same statistic collected in
2018 shows another strong growth of 96% over 2017 (approximately
1,880,000 guests). In the coming years, with the focusing effort
supported by the Huizhou Government in the tourists’ areas, especially
the strong promotion and development of Greater Bay Area by the
PRC Government, it is expected that the growing trend in the number
of visiting guests will sustain and develop a stronger base for Huizhou
Hotels to enhance popularity and boost performance.

Nanshan Hotel

Nanshan Hotel is situated near the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Corridor and the Shekou Port. It has five floors and a total GFA of
approximately 7,000 sg.m., comprising 189 rooms. As the nearby
subway station has been opened since late June 2016, the hotel’s
accessibility to the airport has been greatly improved and the airport is
reachable from the hotel in approximately 30 minutes. Also, Nanshan
Hotel is in the proximity of the Coastal City Commercial Area, Shenzhen
Book Mall (Nanshan), Shenzhen Bay Sports Centre Stadium and theme
parks such as the Window of the World, Overseas Chinese Town
Harbour and the Sea World, which provides stable demand for hotel
rooms from both business and tourism guests.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRON

Data regarding Nanshan Hotel shows that the hotel renovation completed
in 2017 does provide a significant impact on the growth of the hotel
performance including increase in number of available rooms, occupancy
rate and room rates. During the Year, Nanshan Hotel has a turnaround
financial performance, improving from a loss making position to a profit
making position when comparing with last year. This gives the Group an
extra assurance to keep on implementing our updated sales strategies
and operational management which have a proven positive impact on
revenue and profit.

Luohu Hotel

Luohu Hotel is situated near Huagiang North Commercial Street
and Shenzhen Railway Station. It has one floor and a total GFA
of approximately 2,000 sg.m., comprising 78 rooms. The hotel is
conveniently located at the financial centre area in the Luohu District,
adjoining the World Financial Centre, the Shenzhen Book City, The
Mixc, the Citic City Plaza, the Shun Hing Square, the Shenzhen Grand
Theatre and the Dongmen Commercial Pedestrian Street. Luohu Hotel
also enjoys convenient transport access which allows visitors to reach
Luohu Checkpoint, the Shenzhen Conventional & Exhibition Centre and
Shenzhen Stadium easily by a short driving distance.

Thanks to the contribution from the Group’s sales team and operational
team, the revenue of Luohu Hotel has slightly increased during the Year
when comparing with last year. The Group commenced Luohu Hotel's
small-scale renovation in the second quarter of 2018. This small-scale
renovation mainly includes repair of ceilings and walls, and replacement
of in-room electrical appliances and bed linens.

Although, the implementation of one-visit-one-week policy by the Hong
Kong Government has continuously cast adverse impacts on Luohu
Hotel, the prime location of Luohu Hotel provides flexibility in switching
its customer base. Luohu Hotel is now shifting its customer base from
Hong Kong short-trip visitors to group customers participating in nearby
events and exhibitions. Regular exhibitions and recreational functions in
the Luohu District create strong demand for hotel rooms and thus, under
the strategy implemented by the new management, Luohu Hotel has
been able to shift to alternative customer groups by collaborating with
exhibition or function organisers.
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Baoan Hotel

Baoan Hotel has four floors and a total GFA of approximately 1,700
sqg.m., comprising 55 rooms. The hotel is located at a commercial area
in the Baoan District and adjoining the Baoan International Airport, the
Nantou custom, the Baoan Coach Terminal and the Xixiang Pier. The
Group commences a comprehensive renovation to Baoan Hotel in the
fourth quarter of 2018 and expects to finish the renovation before the
end of the first quarter of 2019. The comprehensive renovation mainly
includes hard refurbishment (such as leasehold improvements), soft
refurbishment (such as replacement of mattresses and blankets) and
replacement of in-room electrical appliances.

The revenue of Baoan Hotel has slightly decreased for the Year since
Baoan Hotel is experiencing an adverse operating environment which is
mainly due to the aged decoration of the interior. The main competitive
disadvantage of Baoan Hotel comparing with new competitors in the
surrounding area is the aged decoration of the interior of the hotel. Thus,
the comprehensive renovation to be completed in the first quarter of
2019 should solve this issue well, provide support to the Group’s sales
team and boost both number of guests and revenue effectively.

FINANCIAL SERVICES AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

To focus on developing hotel operations and hotel consultations and
management services business, the Group has decided to integrate
resources and discontinue the development of financial services and asset
management business, and therefore has ceased to apply for licences
of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) and
Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”). Moreover, as mentioned in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 May 2018, the Company has terminated the acquisition of a
company licensed to conduct Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO. This is aimed to accelerate the development of
the core businesses and fully utilize current resources and experience
to expand the Company’s size. However, for the Group’s future
development and upgrade of deployment efficiency of the Group’s assets,
the Group will maintain the money lending business.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has recorded a revenue of HK$45,547,168, compared
with HK$16,281,691 of last financial year, representing an increase
of approximately 180%. Due to the improvement of existing hotel
performance and the revenue brought by the newly acquired Huizhou
Hotel, the Group recorded a total comprehensive loss of HK$5,261,582
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018, representing a
decrease of HK$38,131,714 or about 87.9% as compared with the total
comprehensive loss of HK$43,393,296 (restated) for the last financial
year.

The following table shows the key information of the total of the Group’s
leased-and-operated hotels for the financial years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018 respectively.

g E)

N E 8% 15 U 2545,547,16878 7T + & L {EBF
B EZ 216,281,691 7LIE AN#I1180% ° M
A G FE R E R IREE BN E S BT 2R
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5,261,582/ T * B A BFE 2 2 HEER
%643,393,296/8 7T (AL E 51| ) TF£38,131,7147%8
TCEkTF87.9% ©
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

2018 2017 % change
—E-N\F —E—tfF EDLET

Total 5T
Total available room nights B HEEREBH 185,438 103,929 78.4%
Average occupancy rate FHAFEE 72.43% 70.87% 2.2%
ARR (RVB)* FHEME(ARET)* 206.7 200.7 47.8%
RevPAR (RMB)* FHEEEERA(ARET) 214.9 142.2 51.1%

* ARR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied room
nights

# RevPAR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total available
room nights

* PHEME: REBE ZATEERABRNEAE
BEERE
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs decreased by HK$4,300,687, or approximately
7.7%, from HK$55,891,454 (restated) for the same period of last year
to HK$51,590,767 for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.
The Group has adopted cost saving measures to lower the operating
expenses and employee benefit expenses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets increased by HK$2,765,817, or approximately 22.3%, due to the
rental expenses incurred by the Huizhou Hotel that is newly acquired
during the Year. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased
by HK$975,243, or approximately 20.4% due to the depreciation of
leasehold improvements upon completion of renovation projects of
Nanshan Hotel.

EE A

B2 \F+_A=1+—BLEHF
E - B E KA R AT R E 255,891,454 7%
L (& E5)F 4,300,687 B T 7.7% E
51,590,767/ 7T ° ANE BB HEUK A& FEHE
R EERmST REERMNASL - FRREEE
PTEILNN2,765,817B L8k 4922.3% * It ThE R
REANBENEMNEZBEEBRE - MY -
R N R T E 1 IN975,243/8 7L 5 420.4%
FERREREILERT TENEEMERE
TEHETERTE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2018 2017 % change
—B-N\F I B L E
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEETE 15,195,590 12,429,773 22.3%
Depreciation of property, M - REMEEITE
plant and equipment 5,749,225 4,773,982 20.4%
Employee benefit expenses EEEFFX 16,117,216 21,604,443 (25.4%)
Utilities NGBS 3,001,903 1,202,004 150%
Other operating expenses Efth i@ 11,526,833 13,481,252 (14.5%)
Amortisation of other asset Hoh & S - 2,400,000 (100%)
51,590,767 55,891,454
FINANCE COST ELE=§5%:N

The finance costs decreased by HK$6,998,260 as compared with the
last financial year. The finance costs of last year mainly represented the
interest expenses for the convertible bonds while the finance costs of this
year mainly represented the finance lease cost and the interest expenses
for the shareholder’s borrowings. During the Year, the Company
successfully obtain a waiver regarding the interests of shareholder
borrowings from the Former Controlling Shareholder.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group mainly financed its operations
and expansion with its own working capital generated internally,
Former Controlling Shareholder’s borrowings of a principal amount of
HK$13,800,000 which were unsecured and interest-free and would be
repayable in 2020 and Current Controlling Shareholder’s borrowings of a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which was unsecured and interest-
free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$27,649,893 (31 December 2017: HK$7,877,594). Gearing ratio is
calculated as the amount of interest-bearing borrowings divided by total
equity. The gearing ratio as of 31 December 2018 was not applicable (31
December 2017: 76.5%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcements dated 21 April 2016
and 20 October 2016 respectively, during 2016, the Group has entered
into a memorandum of understanding in relation to the proposed
acquisition of 51%-interests in a hotel located in Sichuan Province, the
PRC. The Group has made the first deposit payment of approximately
HK$23,988,000 in mid-May 2016. During the Year, the negotiation on the
proposed acquisition has been terminated. No legally binding agreement
has been entered into in terms of the proposed acquisition. The Group
also demanded refund and the deposit was refunded in February 2018.

Moreover, as mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 30 April
2018, the Company acquired the operating company of two lease-and-
operate resort hotels in Huizhou during the Year. The Company has been
managing and operating the two hotels collectively as one single hotel
since its official opening on 1 June 2018.
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On 8 August 2017, ZhongHua Financial Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) as
vendor, the Group as purchaser and a guarantor had entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) in relation to the sale
and purchase of the entire issued share capital of ZhongHua Finance
Assets Management Co., Limited, a company licensed to conduct Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO (the “Transaction”).
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16 May 2018,
given that the conditions for completion under the S&P Agreement have
not been met or waived or varied and a new agreement has yet to be
reached, the Vendor and the Group have mutually agreed not to proceed
with the Transaction.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
there was no significant investment held or material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Company,
and the Company had no future plan for material investments or capital
assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s majority of the assets and
liabilities, and revenue and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency
swaps or other financial derivatives.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total number of the issued shares of the Company was 448,363,708
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 448,363,708 shares).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at 29 March 2019,
being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
for the purpose of ascertaining information contained herein (the “Latest
Practicable Date”).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 92 employees as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: 56 employees). Remuneration is determined with reference to
market terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be
paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include contributions to retirement scheme. Regarding the
determination of emoluments payable to Directors, the basis has been
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has outstanding capital
commitments mainly related to the renovation of Baoan Hotel which
is not provided for in the Group’s financial statements, among which
HK$3,636,559 (2017: Nil) commitments were contracted for. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2017:
Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold,
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised
any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December
2018.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no non-adjusting event after the reporting period which would
have material impact to the Group.

COMPLIANCE CONFIRMATION

The Board of Directors confirms that throughout the Year, the Group has
conformed in all material respects with all the requirements under relevant
statutes, rules, standards, codes, licences in respect of its operation,
financial reporting, or disclosures in Hong Kong or other applicable
jurisdictions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises and respects: (i) the importance of environmental
protection; (i) the lawful rights of stakeholders, broadly to be categorised
as employees, customers, suppliers, members of communities, and (i)
corporate social responsibilities of the Group as a member of the society.
A specific report on these issues is covered in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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The following set forth the biographical details of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ye Shusheng

Mr. Ye Shusheng (“Mr. Ye”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 15 December 2017. Mr. Ye graduated with a master’s
degree in applied economics from Xian Jiaotong University of China in
2004.

Mr. Ye worked as the vice head of the Shenzhen Metro Group Company
Limited, the deputy finance controller of Shenzhen Tempus Global Travel
Holding Limited, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the
“SZSE”) (SZSE stock code: 300178), the vice president and the financial
controller of Tempus Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 6880) and a director of
Suzhou China Create Special Material Company Limited (& /1| /b &} &l
AU RHED BBR A &), a company listed on the SZSE (SZSE stock code:
002290).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Yuan Fuer

Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 56, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018
and the Chairman of the Group with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr.
Yuan graduated from Jiangxi Public Medical School in medical studies.
Mr. Yuan, a businessman with over 18 years of experience in property
development and investment business in the PRC, founded Shenzhen
Hazens Real Estate Group Company Limited (“Shenzhen Hazens”) in
1996. Apart from property development and investment in the PRC,
Shenzhen Hazens expanded into other businesses including financial
business, medical business, and hotel and tourism business. Mr. Yuan is
the ultimate beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Mr.
Yuan is also the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of Hehui,
the Current Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Yuan is a brother-in-law of Mr.
Hu Xinglong, a non-executive Director of the Company.

Hu Xinglong

Mr. Hu Xinglong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Mr. Hu holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Hu is a brother-in-law of Mr.
Yuan. Mr. Hu has been the vice president of Shenzhen Hazens since
October 2016, and the chairman and the general manager of Shenzhen
Hazens Property Service Company Limited from October 2016 to April
2017. Furthermore, he had also served as an audit manager, finance
manager and chief accountant of FIYTA Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE Stock Code: 000026)
from June 1997 to October 2016. Mr. Hu was certified as Certified Public
Accountant by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
1993 and Certified Internal Auditor by the Institute of Internal Auditors in
1999.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wau Jilin

Mr. Wu Jilin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Mr. Wu holds a Master’s Degree in Accounting from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Wu was an executive partner of Shenzhen
Lianchuang Lixin Certified Public Accountants since January 2005 and
is an adjunct professor of Accounting Faculty and a tutor of part-time
master students at Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics since
November 2015 and September 2016 respectively. He is a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since 2013.

Du Hongwei

Mr. Du Hongwei (“Mr. Du”), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15
August 2018. Mr. Du holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from Fudan
University. Mr. Du was the vice president, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (Stock Code:
2608) from December 2013 to July 2016, January 2014 to March 2016
and June 2014 to March 2016, respectively. Mr. Du was the general
manager of Tianjin Yufeng Equity Investment Management Company
Limited from September 2009 to May 2012. Mr. Du was a director of
Sichuan Dikang Sci & Tech Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd. (now
known as Sichuan Languang Development Co., Ltd.), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Shanghai Stock Exchange Stock
Code: 600466) from November 2007 to October 2008.

BYFHTES

M

o

REMEE(TREE]D 515 BTN
FANATRRREEZERARRIBIULIFNTE
E - RAERBAEIOVEREER @A
B - RELH_TTRHF— AREERYIH
RIS ERstEEBMZMTAaRA - XD FIH
T -RF+—ARZE-ARENARRIA
MRREEHERTEHR LRERLT2EN
HED o WA T -=FREARBEEAGIE

NEZMKE °

HEE

HEEEE(THEE]D 515 BN\
FNATRBREZTAARTBIIENITE
FoMAEHEERABER ZEEEELTE
il e AimE—=FE+—AFE=T—XE+ A -
—E-NF-RAEE-R"F-AR=ZT—N
FRAR-ZE—XNFE=ZA - EEIBH100FR R
TRE AR AR (R ASR - 2608) Z BB E -
BEMEEMBEARNWE - HAEHR_ZTZT
NENBE-ZT——FRAETRENERE
WEBR AT Z KR - et —TT+F
+—AZEZZTN\F+ AEEM) | BER
E¥RGERARCARBANIEXERERMNHE
RARZES  ZARREEESFRSME
m(EBEHRXZRM I - 600466)

Annual Report 2018
—B—\FFR

21



22

v

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEBZEREFE

Li Zhou

Ms. Li Zhou (“Ms. Li”), aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Ms. Li holds a PhD Degree in Applied Economics from Xian Jiaotong
University. Ms. Li was certified as a certified hospitality educator from
America Hotel & Lodging Educational Institute in 2008 and a consultant
psychologist (Grade 2) by Occupational Skill Testing Authority of the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security in 2011. She was
an international visiting scholar of School of Business, the George
Washington University from 2009 to 2010 and a visiting scholar of the
University of Hawaii from 2016 to 2017. Ms. Li was qualified as a teacher
for higher education to teach management course by the Department
of Education of Guangdong province in 2003. Ms. Li was appointed as
Professor by Jinan University with effect from 1 October 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chung Tin Yan

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”), aged 35, was appointed as the
financial controller and the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 13 February 2017. Mr. Chung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy
in 2005. He has over 12 years of experience in corporate finance,
investment, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Chung held various senior positions in the management team of the
Chief Operating Officer with Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0215). He has also worked as an audit
manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Chung also has extensive
experience in fund raising activities in Hong Kong and in the United
States.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct
responsibility of the Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, as
named above.

Only the Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer is regarded as
member of the Group’s senior management.
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The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board
will keep reviewing and updating such practices from time to time to
ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees who, because of office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company’s securities. The Company had
made specific enquiry to all the directors (the “Directors”) and such-
relevant employees and they confirmed compliance with the Model
Code throughout the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.
No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during this
period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprises six Directors as
follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Ye Shusheng
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)

(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin

(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Du Hongwei

(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Ms. Li Zhou

(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the
websites of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out in the section of “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 22. Mr. Yuan Fuer, a
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Company, is a brother-
in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong, a non-executive Director of the Company.
Save for the aforementioned relationship, there are no family or other
material relationships among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the Year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
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Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management under the leadership of the chief executive
officer. Major matters include implementation of the strategies and
decisions approved by the Board and the management assumes full
responsibility to the Board for operations of the Group.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues and with
no objections from any Director, a shorter reasonable notice was given to
the Directors for a number of regular meetings held in 2018.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held on
20 April 2018, all the then independent non-executive Directors and
the then non-executive Director were presented to enable the Board to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply
with the CG Code.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination
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committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended E&&i% 24 % i??%&ﬂx%ﬁé\z HE
31 December 2018 is set out in the following table: EEEEN T
Remuneration Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee
Name of directors Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings ~ General Meetings
S 2882  BNZEEeR  FMzZEesE  RYzegss KRAE
(attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.
of metings held) of mestings held) of mestings held) of meetings held) of meetings held)
ir):97¢ V4 (W%?A%ﬁ(/ (tREng/ (LR (LR
fregiang) TERERY)  BMeZENY)  BOOBERY)  Bresdny)
Executive Directors #i7E%
M. Ye Shusheng M 1516 N/ATER N/A TR NATEE 11
Mr. Huang Yun (Resigned with BERE
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZZ-N\FAARBER) 14/15 NA TR NIA &R NATER 1
Mr. Dai Lifeng (Resigned with Hulth
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZZ-\ENASBREH) 13115 NATER N/A TR NATEE 11
Mr. Min Zhi Dong (Resigned with RER%E
effect fom 1 March 2018) (BZZ-\F=A—HiE#HfT) 02 NA &R NA R ER NATER NATER
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
M. Yuan Fuer (Chaiman) RERTE(ER)
(Appointed with effect (BZF-\FN\ATRAREERR)
from 15 August 2018) 44 NATER NATER NATER NA TER
Mr. Hu Xinglong (Appainted with WlErs(azT-N\E
ffect from 15 August 2018) NATHAREZRE) 44 N/ATER N/A TR N/A TR NATEE
Mr. Lu Zefeng (Resigned with BRE%E
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZZ-\ENASRRREEH) 14115 NATER N/A TR NA T 11
Independent Non-executive BUFHESE
Directors
Mr. W Jiin (Appointed with REMEE
ffect from 15 August 2018) (BZZ-\ENATHAREEH) 44 N/ATER NATEE NATEE NATEE
Mr. Du Hongwei (Appointed with HEEEE
effect from 15 August 2018) (EZE-\E/\ATLREEZT) 4/4 NA &R NA R ER NATER NATER
M. Li Zhou (Appointed with Bt
effect from 15 August 201) (BZF-\EN\ATHAREEA) 44 NARER NAFER NAREE NATER
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Resigned with ~ BB %4
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZZ-\ENASBREH) 1015 202 45 67 1
Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Resigned with PEsnk
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZZ-NENA BEEHE) 15/15 22 55 m 1
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest (Resigned with &2 5%4
effect from 6 September 2018) (BZF-N\ENARBRRHE) 15/15 202 5/5 m 11
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and invited to raise any matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are opened for
inspection as requested by the Directors. During the Year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors were also provided
with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors of the Company, at the
expense of the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial
position of the Group through, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so
that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Ye Shusheng is the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group and his role is to oversee the overall
management of the Company. From 1 January 2018 to 5 September
2018, no individual was appointed as the Chairman. The role of the
Chairman has been performed collectively by all executive Directors of
the Company.

The Board considers this arrangement allows contributions from all
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity and
implementation of the Company’s policy and strategies and in the interest
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Effective from 6 September 2018, Mr. Yuan Fuer was appointed as
the Chairman of the Group, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated thereafter. The Chairman’s main role is
to lead the Board in discharging its powers and duties, while the Chief
Executive Officer’'s main role is to lead the management of the Company
for undertaking all the responsibilities delegated by the Board and
managing the overall operation of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a specific term of three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts. At each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every one year or three years. Any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of members
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i)~ reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and monitoring
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board

Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives was summarized as follows:

Board diversity
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Education #(5
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Number of directors

EEAY
ED: Executive Director

HITEF JEMITER

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
objectives of Board Diversity Policy.

Legend Strategy Internatlonal Holdings Group Company Limited
taBR S EERERA

NED: Non-executive Director

INED: Independent
Non-executive Director

B IERITES

REZEECRTESENEZIUILEER - N
BRETZAN  UTRAEAEECEREES
KB Z L BRI B IZ -



Corporate Governance Report
SEEARRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. Members are provided with sufficient resources,
including but not limited to, the access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the expense
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018 for reviewing the remuneration package of
the Directors and the senior management, assessing performance of
Directors, approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts and making
recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Du Hongwei (Chairman)
(Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)

Mr. Wu Jilin (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)
Ms. Li Zhou (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, an
analysis of annual remuneration payable to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
below:

BEAN - ARIR B ASFRISF RN B 51K
ENEREEEXNEREE=E_F—N\F+_A
=+ —ALFEZFEFMETHNSE RO
L ENE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —EF—+tF

Number of Number of

persons persons

A AEL

Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T BA £ 1 5
HKS$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 721,000,000/ 7T 14 9

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and
succession planning of the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.

For the policy of nomination of directors of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”), the Nomination Committee of the Company shall first discuss
the nomination of candidates for new Directors, examine the qualification
of these candidates, and then recommend such candidates to the
Board. The Board shall determine whether the appointment of such
candidates should be proposed for election at the general meetings.
The major criteria considered by the Nomination Committee and the
Board are the candidates’ educational backgrounds, experience in the
industry, their proposed commitment to the Company and achieving the
goal of diversity of the Board. Regarding the nomination of independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee will also particularly
consider the independence of such candidates taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held seven meetings. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board structure to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company pursuant to its
terms of reference (available on the websites of the Company the Stock
Exchange), the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company appointed
two non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yuan Fuer and Mr. Hu Xinglong
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wu Jilin,
Mr. Du Hongwei and Ms. Li Zhou. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed the appointed Directors’ background, including but not limited
to independence, gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Nomination
Committee considered current Board composition has achieved the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Yuan
Fuer, Mr. Hu Xinglong, Mr. Wu Jilin, Mr. Du Hongwei and Ms. Li Zhou
shall retire and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Ms. Li Zhou (Chairman)
(Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)

Mr. Wu Jilin (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)
Mr. Du Hongwei (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

e reviewing the financial information of the Group;

° reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

e overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2017, and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2018, the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, the effectiveness of Company’s
internal audit function and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wu Jilin (Chairman)
(Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)

Mr. Du Hongwei (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)
Ms. Li Zhou (Appointed with effect from 6 September 2018)
All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the

members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process
includes enhancing the systems of risk management and internal
control in view of the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications
and experience, their training programs, and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The Board
has conducted and completed such review in respect of the year ended
31 December 2018 and considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way
S0 as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,475,000 to the external auditor and
its affiiate. Among such fee, the amount of approximately HK$1,280,000
was paid for the final audit purposes including interim review and other
review engagements and HK$195,000 was paid to its affiliate for non-
audit purposes, the non-audit services mainly consist of consulting
services in relation to the environmental, social and governance reporting,
risk assessment and review on financing reporting procedures and
internal control system.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

During 2018, Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”) has attended relevant
professional training to update his skills and knowledge. He met the
training requirements as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2018. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there
is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group did not declare nor pay any dividends to shareholders of the
Group during the Year.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on
the results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group, future
prospects and other factors that the Directors may consider relevant.
Holders of the shares will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
The declaration of payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Directors’ discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed
as dividends, such portion of profits will not be able to be reinvested in
the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that the Directors
will be able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out
in any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in the
past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Group in the future.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with
objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, including
annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have been included in
circulars accompanying notice convening a general meeting and such
procedures have been read out by the chairman of the general meeting.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders. The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). At the annual general
meeting held on 20 April 2018 (the “2018 AGM”), a separate resolution
was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.
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At the 2018 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from the
auditor of the Company, ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, were present for
questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting held during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary to the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed
for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting. Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSAL

If a shareholder wishes to make any proposal at any general meeting
of the Company, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of
the proposal to the company secretary of the Company within 7 days
commencing from the date of the notice of the general meeting of the
Company (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Director from time to time).

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@Isih.com.hk, or mail
to Suite 1705, 17/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.
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SEEARRE

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS - tERERHE

PRINCIPLES

The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018, in order
to comply with the requirements set forth in Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) of the Listing
Rules. This covers the environmental and social performance of the core
business of the Group in the PRC during the period from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018.

The Board is responsible for our ESG strategy and reporting including
evaluating and determining the ESG-related risks and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. We have engaged Zhonghui Anda Risk Services
Limited to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to
the business as well as the stakeholders, through reviewing the Group’s
operations and holding internal discussions. The management has
provided a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the ESG
risk management and internal control systems. Pursuant to the general
disclosure requirements of the ESG Guide, disclosures relating to the
material ESG issues identified have been included in this ESG Report
which aims to provide a balanced representation of the Group’s ESG
performance in the environmental and social areas, and covers the
Group’s operations.

This report comprises the review of environmental, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Group’s policies and practices as well as certain
major subsidiaries of the Company’s policies and practices in respect
of three environmental aspects and eight social aspects in accordance
with ESG Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules for the Year. This report
is designed to allow the Company’s stakeholders, such as shareholders,
governments and regulatory bodies, employees, customers, suppliers
and society and the public to have comprehensive understanding of
the long-term sustainability information of the Group. The Group seeks
to balance the views and interests of these stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a view to set the course for long term
prosperity.

The Group is principally engaged in hotel operations and hotel
consultations and management services and other related businesses.
For the Year, the Group operates four leased-and-operated hotels. The
four hotels are located at Nanshan Road (the “Nanshan Hotel”), Luohu
District (the “Luohu Hotel”) and Baoan District (the “Baocan Hotel”) in
Shenzhen as well as Huizhou District (the “Huizhou Hotel”) in Huizhou
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (collectively, the “Four
Hotels”). The Four Hotels have 694 rooms in total. In addition, certain
green renovations of the Four Hotels have been completed in the Year in
order to attract more guests and boost the revenue of the Group.
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BRI HERERERE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online
and offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with the
stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders on their
recommendations and propositions to ensure its business practices can
meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, governments and regulatory
bodies, employees, customers, suppliers and society and the public. The
Group discusses with the stakeholders through various channels for their
expectations and relevant feedback of the Group as below:

KO ESH

FELEAREBNAIFHEERTEEZD
AR ARERRFERER MG TEER
B YRR EREA A S E R R S
REBOHRE - BARFHER RIS EE
i o dEAN - ANEBEFD FHERERE MIEE
NHEREEBERNARNEZME -

BNERERR  BNLEEHRE B8 ¥
F - HEBUERMERAR - AEEFBRLE
RERPBOHETHEHE  MASENABR
BN

Stakeholder Expectations Communication and feedback
BHE HE BRERRE
Shareholders ° Financial results ° Improving profitability
ES o WMGEAE o REEAFeEN
e  Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosures
s NEFHE s THIERKE
e Sound risk control e Optimising risk management and
o  FTEMRRES internal control
o BrREREERAEES
Governments and e  Compliance with laws and regulations e  Compliance operation
regulatory bodies o BSPIEDIFIRG o  AREE
BT & BE B g e Tax payment in accordance with laws e  Tax payment in full and on time
o HORMAM o RIS RN
Employees e Career development platform ° Promotion mechanism
(== e BEZBEYA o ETHHHI
e  Salary and benefits e  Competitive salary and employee
e FHEKEH benefits

e  Safe working environment
o ZEMIFERE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e  ABRFINHELEERSEN

° Providing trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness

o RHEBFIININELZEEH
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RIE - HERERRSE

Stakeholder Expectations Communication and feedback
BHE i) BRERKRE
Customers e Logistics and delivery service standards e  Monitoring of level of customers’
Y o IR RAT AR KA satisfaction through enquiry and
e Customer information security questionnaire
s EPER%EZE o NUEREMBFREAZEFMER
e Customer privacy protection
s EFILEBR#E
Suppliers e  Business ethics and credibility e Performing the contracts according to
HrEm s HPREBENEE law
o EEL
Society and the public ° Environmental protection ° Putting into use environmental
HERAR o IRIFRE protections and energy saving
e Employment opportunities equipments
s  HE#E o BIRIRETBLRMBIRALLA

° Providing employment opportunities

o  RHHEHEE
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BRI HERERERE

EMISSIONS

As stated above, the Group is principally engaged in hotel operations
and hotel consultations and management services and other related
businesses and hence the emissions relating to air, greenhouse gases
emissions and discharge into the water and land, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major greenhouse gases emissions of the Four
Hotels were the greenhouse gases generated by the electricity
consumption and the waste paper disposal at landfills. In order to
minimise the energy consumption and waste paper of the Four Hotels,
various sustainable development measures have been enforced
to address environmental responsibilities within normal operating
procedures, including but not limited to (i) compact fluorescent lamp
were installed as much as possible in the Four Hotels as at 31 December
2018; (i) switch on and off sensors were installed in the corridors; (i)
staff were encouraged to switch off the electronic devices, lights and air-
conditioners after the use of a room or leaving office for a period of time
such as lunch hour; (vi) air-conditioners with low efficiency or malfunction
were replaced in the Year; (v) refrigerators were kept away from sunlight;
and (vi) staff were encouraged to print only when necessary and use
recycle papers in first priority for printing so far as practicable.

Greenhouse Gases (“GHG”) Emissions from Operations

23587

AN EXFR - AEBETBRERELENRE
OB E B EA E B IR RIS S H R - Bt
RAFEYEBERNERFERY BEREH
M KR RBE S A REE B E N EERE
) o

RAEE - WEEENEZEEREIRA
BIHREMEHREENER - AEERDN
MBERERERERESR  AEEERNET
AEEEREERE  EAFEKCEBEFAER
BEMT BREFAREAIR-_Z—NE+ A
=+ ARUEEE BT RE T EMEE ()R
ERMREFEARERS  (i)sB 8 TaECREH
B RBERM A E — B (TR H
EFRE - BRRZTA (VRN EE T IRER
FHIRMEANZEH - (VKERBEBXHE &
VBN E TEANESETHY EIE R /THE
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Indicator Unit 2018 2017
it By —E-N\F —E—+tF
GHG emissions (Scope 1) Kilogram of Carbon dioxide equivalent
REREEBER(EEN) (“Kg of CO,.")

& ArSE( ZatiRaTE£)) N/A i A N/A i A
GHG emissions (Scope 2)** Kg of CO,,
BEREN(EE2) —SEmATESE 524,883 262,933
GHG emissions (Scope 3)* Kg of CO,,
BEREN(EES)! —SEmATESE 57,792 16,756
Total* Kg of CO,,
Gl —SEmATESE 582,675 279,689
Hotel gross floor area’ Square meter (“M?”)
B AR AR FHARAFHAK]D 35,956 11,056
GHG intensity Kg of CO, /M?
BERERE ZEUEIRATER Tk 16.2 25.3

# As Huizhou Hotel started operation since June 2018, the figures in 2018
were greater than 2017.

The emission factor is sourced from the China Southern Power Grid in 2017.
The figures are calculated in accordance with the “Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs”.
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BRI HERERERE

Environmental performance from operations EEEANRERR

Indicator Unit 2018 2017
BE By —E—N\E —E—+F
Hazardous waste produced Ton

BEREMES A N/A 7~ A N/A 75 A
Intensity Ton/M?

BE g, 7K N/A iR N/A NE A
Non-hazardous waste produced Ton

FEEREMEE WA 25.7 28.2
Intensity Ton/M?

BE g, 77K 0.001 0.003

No hazardous waste is generated from the operations of hotel business,
hotel consultations and management services and other related
businesses. Non-hazardous waste generated from the operations in the
Four Hotels are mainly office and hotel room consumables. The hotel
staff has promoted separation of waste such as cartons and plastic
bottles, which are placed in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers
for collection. For the hotel consumables such as cans and used plastic
bottles of water, the building management offices of landlords have
separated them from other waste for recycling purposes.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations that has an impact relating to air and greenhouse
gases emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group in the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.
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BRI HERERERE

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities
on the environment and supporting environmental protection programs.
In particular, a number of initiatives, which are designed to conserve
resources, were introduced to promote employee awareness of the need
to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emissions” section, the Group has a series of
policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by the employees
in the Four Hotels. In order to increase the electricity consumption
efficiency, a number of new air-conditioners and the compact fluorescent
lamp were installed in the Year. Other than above, solar water heaters
and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Hotel to generate daily
hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption. In
addition, shower sprinklers with low water pressure were installed in all
bathrooms of the Four Hotels to reduce water consumption and water
intensity.

EREM

AEEBNBEEFEDERENZE AR
XEFREREERR - YHEASBHHERNE
it RSB THREERANBERER -

BN £ Bey | — Pt - NEEREE
[ERABZHBEREFUNREEREE - B
REAEEYN RAFERLRRZAHMEAL
ERRENE © BR_LALLASH - FEILETRE REAISEE
HUKERRAVKR - DA R BB EVKEE - R
KRR BB - tboh - BRPITME R EEE
H 2 E0A B 2 R EEKEBRMAIEEE - FE LR
DIKFERIKEE

Relevant Consumptions from Operation EEEAXNHEHBHEE

Indicator Unit 2018 2017
BE B —E2-N\F —E—+tF
Energy Consumption

BERUR#E

Electricity consumption? kWh

EWa T Ead TR 2,119,884 856,182
Electricity consumption intensity kWh/M?

BEEREE FRE,SFHA 59.0 77.4
Water Consumption

K3E

Water consumption* Cubic metre (“M*”)

IKFE! SR 81,522 22,916
Water consumption intensity Ms/M?

KFEEE SLHR K 2.3 2.1

# As Huizhou Hotel started operation since June 2018, the figures in 2018
were greater than 2017.

As the Group is principally engaged in hotel operations and hotel
consultations and management services and other related businesses,
no packaging material was used in the Year.
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BRI HERERERE

Regarding the hotel operations, the Group closely monitors the level of
energy consumption and greenhouse gases emissions of its hotels. Every
year, the Four Hotels are required to set their respective energy and
carbon reduction targets, and come up with feasible measures to achieve
them. The details and results achieved are listed as follows:

Projects
HE

Compact fluorescent lamp

2B

Shower heads

EEH

Solar water heaters and heat pumps

KFGRERVKZEE N ERR

Air-conditioners

24

Non-Hazardous Waste

FFBEEED

AAEEBELEMNS  AEETENER
J& B BETR B AR MUR = R BB BE UK - TOREDEE
BEYALRES AR RIBEEE
WHIERAITHEBAZEXB R - FTEENFBR
REREZIAT

Details and results achieved

FEENFERER

Lightings in the Four Hotels have been installed compact fluorescent lamps
which have saved up much electricity as compared with incandescent light lamp.

MEEECREBERRARE  ALIFBERGFEESES -

Using water savings shower heads in the bathroom of the Four Hotels,
consumption of water is saved after installation.

PAPUREDEE R Z 0 A KEER - REREEEHEAK -

Solar water heaters and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Hotel to
generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption.
The consumption of electricity is saved in the Nanshan Hotel for water heating.
EREILEZERGREAKERBAREETHRKHEE - LR REHEN
JERE o B IR B 2K E S ETE BRI A E 1 HRE o

A number of new air-conditioners have been upgrading from old air-conditioners
in the Year, the relevant consumption of electricity would be reduced.

RER  ERETEZR/AREZHZR - HEEEREERRRD -

Non-hazardous waste from the Four Hotels include packaging materials of hotel
guest supplies, paper for office use and kitchen waste from restaurants of hotels.
The hotels made their best effort to minimising the impact on the environment
by using biodegradable material for packaging materials of hotel guest supplies.
The hotels promoted separation of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles,
which are placed in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers for collection.
MEEERFEEEEYREEEEERmeEYH - BAZREEEEER
BREEY) o BEEBBEEERMERYEHRAR EWERYE - FERDRIE
FE  BEHBED(MEMEREZBN) S E - MERSIR TR HERNSE T
R E SR -
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BRI HERERERE

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group always raise energy-saving awareness among the staff of
the Four Hotels, reminding them to switch off all lighting and electronic
devices after use. On the other hand, hotel guests are encouraged
energy reduction by providing energy-saving tips in hotel lobbies and
written reminders in guest rooms.

The impact on the environment and natural resources from the hotel
operations of the Group in PRC is minimal in the Year.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital
and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical
coverage in accordance with local regulations.

Distribution of work force classified by difference catalogues as follows:

BERRARER

AREBE TR UEEE B THERENES - =8
BETRERRBHAMBELNETRE - 5
— 7 E  EERNEE A ERHE RS R NE
[EEERHEEERT  SEEEEEEHD

BER e

REE - REERFENEELEHRERA

&=

AEBREERERANEALRHEHF N
MEBREMNAS - BERIEE TEARRIR
HEFAWERELFERR - BEAREE M
FEREAFER AR ER - BR - BRAK
BERREZRBEN -

BRI B BT H DT

Social Performance Unit 2018 2017
HERR B —E2-N\F —E2—tHF
By Gender

gz lEBs)

Male People

S A 28 (33%) 7 (18%)
Female People

geqis A 58 (67%) 33 (82%)
Total People

st A 86 (100%) 40 (100%)
By Age Group

RERHERE D

Under 30 years old People

30 AR A 41 (48%) 13 (33%)
30 - 50 years old People

30E505% A 36 (42%) 24 (60%)
Over 50 years old People

5038 A A 9 (10%) 3 (7%)
Total People

st A 86 (100%) 40 (100%)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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BRI HERERERE

The Group places emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a
working environment which is free from any form of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable
composition and balance.

The Group has enhanced its employee handbook with effect from
January 2015 which is applicable for the Four Hotels. Such employee
handbook is developed in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC and
has been distributed to all employees since they commence working for
the Group.

The remuneration and position of the employees of the hotel operations
will be adjusted which are based on the results of individual working
performance and efficiency. Staff bonus is based on the performance
appraisal and operating results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning and even a
dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are to be reported to the human and
administration department. In the Year, no incident of serious misconduct
was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented
with reference to the requirements of the PRC Labour Law.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Payment of Wages Tentative Provisions and
other applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.
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BRI HERERERE

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly required
to follow the operating procedures, which include but not limited to (i) pay
attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, if found, should
immediately report to the superior; (i) use both hands to handle the carts;
(iii) use a ladder or chair to take items from a height or ask for colleagues
to help; (iv) erase the slippery or oily working areas immediately in order
to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged machines or appliances to
avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools and safety equipment; and
(vii) strictly enforce the industry norms and professional operation.

Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Four Hotels. First aid, fire
extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly
performed. Two fire drills were conducted in the Year for the Four Hotels.

For electrical works, the Four Hotels have employed electrical technicians
who have valid licences granted by relevant government officials.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety, Regulations on Work-
Related Injury Insurance of the People’s Republic of China and other
applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to provide a safety working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has been committed to providing on-the-job training of
its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently
and effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which
may arise. During the Year, quarterly training courses were provided to
the employees including but not limited to customer check-in and check-
out procedures, room services techniques, disinfection techniques for
hotel rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ complaint, handling of items
left by customers and so on. The employees participated actively in the
training courses. For certain external training courses recommended
by the Group, such fees of training course are borne by the Group in
accordance with the specific guidelines of reimbursement stated in the
employee handbook.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERE

For recreation activities, the Group often organises a variety of
physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports
competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group complies with
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for
the Four Hotels.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid documents and
copies to the Group as follows: (i) identity card, academic proof such
as diploma or degree certificate, title certificate, vocational qualification
certificate, English grade certificate; (i) social security card; (i) medical or
health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant information and
documents required by the Group. The above procedures can ensure no
child labour will be employed in the hotel operations.

All Employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC.
In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are not
encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written form. The
compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions of
Labour Law of PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour, Protection of Minors of the People’s Republic of China
and other applicable laws and regulations relating to preventing child or
forced labour on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure
high quality of service to our hotel customers. Specific attentions have
been paid to promote the health and safety consumables and services of
the Four Hotels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERE

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the
values of honesty, integrity and fairness in the supply chain management.
When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account the factors such
as quality of services and products, past performance and reputation of
the suppliers. When dealing with suppliers of goods and services, the
approval procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of management.
The Group expects major suppliers to observe the same environmental,
social, health and safety and governance policies in their operating
practices as those adopted by the Group.

The major suppliers for hotel operations are supply of bottles of water,
washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking water provided to
customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles of water from a
well-known brand which has a series of green production procedures.
For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier to provide
hygiene licence and environmental protection certificate prior to placing
any order. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier to use pest
control materials or consumables which fulfil the required standards of
local laws and regulations.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms
of our products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to product health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which we operate. The Group requires its employees to comply
with applicable governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.

The Group deals with lots of private and confidential information of its
hotel customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working
practices.

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the
Four Hotels. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape
exercises are regularly performed. Daily hotel room cleaning services and
regular hygiene inspection are maintained from time to time. If a customer
complains on initially assigned hotel room, the front line staff will arrange
another hotel room until it is satisfied by the customer.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other applicable laws and
regulations that has a significant impact relating to health and safety,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress on the Group in the Year.

No significant fines had been reported in the Year.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in any form are
strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards
of conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in order to
promote the integrity environment in the workplace. Any employee is
prohibited from giving and accepting of advantages, by using the excuse
of work or the authority granted from the Group. The advantages include
but not limited to money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and
entertainment.

All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the
employee handbook, which includes but is not limited to (i) protection
of customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii)
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate
exceeding RMB100; (i) prohibit to use the name or authority of the
Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods
without obtaining approval from relevant superiors.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the employees.
The human resources department may terminate the employment
contract with the employee who carries out dishonest acts as stated in
the employee handbook. The content of the complaint should be clear
to the fact that it is forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual
basis or vent their anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i)
the individual is unfairly treated in which relevant superior handling of
the problem is not fair, abuse of power or combat retaliation; and (i) the
behaviour of individual causes damage to the interests of the Group.
All employees can raise their complaint by putting a written letter into
a complaint box located at reception of the hotel, by mail to human
resources department or even by verbal presentation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERERE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
applicable laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year.

There was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees in the Year.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. This is realised by first meeting the needs of the hotel
employees and then further extending the caring and services to their
families and to the surrounding community.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate
culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various charitable
events and community service.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 6 and the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 18.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in hotel operations and hotel consultations and
management services and other related business. The Group is also
involved in the money lending business. The foregoing discussions form
parts on the business review as contained in this Report of the Directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 77 of this annual
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders including share premium account and
accumulated losses.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity
on page 81 respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was approximately 54.6% (2017: 23.8%) of the total and the percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
21.0% (2017: 10.8%) and the Directors do not consider any one
customer to be influential to the Group.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December
2018, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 33.5% (2017: 50.0%) of the total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 13.6%
(2017: 28.6%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings of principal amount
of HK$13,800,000 (2017: HK$16,500,000) from China Medical, Former
Controlling Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on 1 June 2020. In addition, as at 31 December 2018,
the Group had a borrowing of principal amount of HK$10,000,000 from
Hehui, Current Controlling Shareholder. The borrowing is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Save for the borrowings, the
Group did not have any outstanding bank borrowings (2017: Nil).

Moreover, on top of the above borrowings, Hehui has also made
available a credit facility up to the amount of HK$350,000,000 to the
Company under substantially the same terms with the Current Controlling
Shareholder’s Borrowing under which the Company may request for
drawdown at any time prior to 15 November 2021 and any borrowing
made will be unsecured and interest-free. As at 31 December 2018,
credit facility of amount of HK$340,000,000 is available for use.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

The Group had nil capitalised interest during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$1,349,160).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2018
is set out on page 163 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ye Shusheng

Mr. Huang Yun (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)
Mr. Dai Lifeng (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)
Mr. Min Zhi Dong (Resigned with effect from 1 March 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Hu Xinglong
(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Lu Zefeng (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Du Hongwei
(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Ms. Li Zhou
(Appointed with effect from 15 August 2018)
Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Resigned with effect from 6 September 2018)

Mr. Min Zhi Dong resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1
March 2018. Mr. Huang Yun and Mr. Dai Lifeng resigned as executive
Directors with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr. Lu Zefeng resigned as
a non-executive Director with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr. Cheng
Chai Fu, Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest resigned
as independent non-executive Directors with effect from 6 September
2018. Mr. Min Zhi Dong, Mr. Huang Yun, Mr. Dai Lifeng, Mr. Lu Zefeng,
Mr. Cheng Chai Fu, Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest
have confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and they
are not aware of any matter regarding their resignation that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board
would like to express its sincere gratitude to Mr. Min Zhi Dong, Mr. Huang
Yun, Mr. Dai Lifeng, Mr. Lu Zefeng, Mr. Cheng Chai Fu, Mr. Tso Hon Sai
Bosco and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest for their valuable contributions to the
Company during their tenure of office.

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 19 to 22 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service agreements entered into by the Company with each of the
executive Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during
the year ended 31 December 2018, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of
the executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify any executive Director against any liability attaching to him in
connection with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason
of being a Director, and in which the judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles
of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the directors shall
vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively. Remuneration packages
of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following Director had interest in the shares of the Company as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO:
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Approximately

percentage of

the issued

Capacity/Nature Number and share capital

Name of Director of interest class of shares (Note 1)

HEBITRAE

EEnA B Rty R4 8 K ER B E 2t (fEE)

Yuan Fuer (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 321,580,510 shares 71.72%

corporation

wER(ME2) REREE 2 R 321,580,5108% 71.72%

Note 1: The approximate shareholding percentage is based on the number of  B{:¥1 : MOBEF L IER -_ZE—NE+_A
shares in issue as at 31 December 2018 of 448,363,708. =+— BB 317X 448,363,7080% °

Note 2: These 321,580,510 shares were registered in the name of Hehui. Mr. MizE2 © 321,580,510 1% BZ 12 /=& LA Hehui 89 & T &

Yuan Fuer held the entire issued share capital of Hehui and was deemed I RERAEEEAEHehUI R E 2 21T %

to be interested in the 321,580,510 shares in which Hehui was interested % At RBRIEEAS RS SR A5%ES

pursuant to the SFO. HehuilfE A 2 321,580,510/% A% {7t 25 R 2 #

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as was B EXFAHEEN  REBEHRM R -2ZT— )\

known to the Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, not being Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
had interests in the shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FEREREMALREATR.
B HERORERS 2 BER%

REEFM K- \FE+-A=+—H
ATFAAREBRE(CEHER LA (L3
ARREEREBTHA L) RBBHHEE
BENARD TR E S RIS 50 3361417
BB s

Aggregate
percentage of
Shareholding

Name Capacity Number of shares (Note 1)
BRETDL

s 14 gk ¢E| (Fff=E1)

Hehui Beneficial owner 321,580,510 71.72%
EREAA

Chen Hui (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 35,740,071 7.97%
~_corporation

B (PH5E2) REEHER s

Note 1: The approximate shareholding percentages are based on the number of
shares in issue as at 31 December 2018 of 448,363,708.

Note 2: As disclosed in “Form 1 — Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice”
filed by Mr. Chen Hui on 20 February 2018, Mr. Chen Hui controls 100%

#0m

of the shares in &=, which in turn controls 100% of the shares in
CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC, and & %M 2
and CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC each holds
interests in 35,740,071 shares of the Company directly.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as was
known to the Directors, no other person (not being a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MR - SO OLEDER T N\F+=A
=+—HE#{TM{)448,363,708

Mizk2 . BnpRiEEER —T—NFZA=-+HRIE
A —EAKRBERAN | ZHEE - BB
EERHAE100% 2 ME#E - ME RFA 28
A CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND
SERIES SPCZ 100% %1% « Et - HRFA=S
. CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND
SERIES SPCH E#FE A2 A135,740,071%
B&tn o

B EXFREEIN  LEEMM R=_F—N\
FH-A=1t—8 #EEMAL(AFEAR
AEEHTEBTHRAR) R HAARERN
BEABTNARARERZ BB HRIE
3B6IRFE 2 B M2 ERIAR °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Yuan Fuer, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate
beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Shenzhen
Hazens is principally engaged in property development and property
management services business and holds interests in several hotels
which are located in the United States of America and managed by
multinational hotel management groups through its subsidiaries. Given
that the hotel business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries is not
conducted in the target markets of the Group or places where the Group
has existing and ongoing business operations, and that the majority of
the members of the Board are independent and not connected with the
boards of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries, the Group is capable
of and has been operating independently of, and at arm’s length from
the business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries, no competition is
considered to exist during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”, for the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Directors are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in note 33 to the
financial statements and those exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, there was no

(1) transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party in which any Director or any entity connected with any
Director is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly;

(2) contract of significance between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders or
their subsidiaries; or

(8) contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, by any of the Company’s controlling

shareholders or their subsidiaries

subsisting during or at the end of the financial year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company which was not
contract of service with Directors or persons engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company was entered into or existed during the year
under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 33 (other than note 33(c)) to
the consolidated financial statements constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with all applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of such transactions.

On 2 June 2017, 28 August 2017 and 28 December 2017, Former
Controlling Shareholder, China Medical, advanced shareholder’s
borrowings (“Former Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings”) in
the amount of HK$6,000,000, HK$5,500,000 and HK$5,000,000
respectively, to the Company which is on normal commercial terms or
better to the Group. Such Former Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings
are all for a term of 3 years and carry interest at the rate of 8% per annum
and are unsecured. During the Year, the Company repaid HK$2,700,000
regarding the above Former Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings.
As at 30 June 2018, the Group signed an agreement with the Former
Controlling Shareholder, pursuant to which, borrowing interest for
the period from 2 June 2017 to 30 June 2018 and interest payable
commencing from 1 July 2018 are waived.

Moreover, on 28 August 2017, on top of the above Former Controlling
Shareholder’s Borrowings, China Medical has also made available a
credit facility up to amount of HK$20,000,000 to the Company under
substantially the same terms with the Former Controlling Shareholder’s
Borrowings under which the Company may request for drawdown at any
time prior to 31 March 2018.
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On 16 November 2018, Current Controlling Shareholder, Hehui, has
made available a credit facility up to amount of HK$350,000,000 to the
Company (“Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility”) on normal
commercial terms or better to the Group. The borrowings drawn under
the Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility shall be repayable
on the date as set out in the individual borrowing agreements and are
interest-free and unsecured. The Company may request for drawdown at
any time prior to 15 November 2021.

On 4 December 2018, the Company request drawdown of borrowings
from Hehui under the Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility
in the amount of HK$10,000,000 (“Current Controlling Shareholder’s
Borrowings”). Such Current Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings are
repayable on demand, interest-free and unsecured.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has conducted the following
continuing connected transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

On 1 January 2018, Huizhou Hazens East Resort Travel Services
Limited (“Huizhou Hazens”) and Huidong Xinghui Construction Limited
(“Huidong Xinghui”) entered into the agreement (the “Lease-and-operate
Agreement A”) in relation to the leasing and the grant of the operation
and management rights of a property located in Huizhou, Guangdong
consisting of 188 apartments with a total usable area of 11,868.46
square metres (“Property A”) by Huidong Xinghui to Huizhou Hazens for
a term commencing on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2027. On 1 April 2018, Huizhou Hazens and Huidong Xinghui entered
into the agreement (the “Lease-and-operate Agreement B”) in relation to
the leasing and the grant of the operation and management rights of a
property located in Huizhou, Guangdong consisting of 184 apartments
with a total usable area of 13,032 square metres (“Property B”) by
Huidong Xinghui to Huizhou Hazens for a term commencing on 1 April
2018 and ending on 31 March 2020. It was intended that Property A and
Property B would be operated and managed by Huizhou Hazens on a
lease-and-operate basis collectively as one single resort hotel with a total
of 372 rooms. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
30 April 2018 in connection with the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interests in Huizhou Hazens by the Company from Shenzhen
Hazens Real Estate Group Limited (“Shenzhen Hazens”), the completion
of the Acquisition took place on 30 April 2018, following which Huizhou
Hazens has become a directly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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As disclosed in the joint announcements dated 25 July 2018 and
5 September 2018 respectively issued by Hehui as offeror and the
Company as offeree in connection with, among others, the unconditional
mandatory general cash offer for all the issued shares (other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by Hehui and the parties
acting in concert with it) (the “Offer”), on 18 July 2018, China Medical as
vendor, Mr. Ding Yifan and Mr. Huang Yun as guarantors, and Hehui as
purchaser entered into the agreement pursuant to which Hehui agreed to
purchase from China Medical 269,019,010 shares (“the Share Transfer”),
representing approximately 60.00% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company immediately following the completion of the Share Transfer.
Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, Hehui was required
to make the Offer. Immediately upon the close of the Offer and as at
the date of this report, Hehui beneficially owned 321,580,510 shares,
representing approximately 71.72% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Following the completion of the Share Transfer which took place on
18 July 2018, Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”) has become a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Huidong Xinghui, being a directly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Hazens, which was beneficially held
as to approximately 79.76% by Mr. Yuan and his brother in aggregate
as at the completion date of the Share Transfer, was an associate of Mr.
Yuan. As such, as at the completion date of the Share Transfer, Huidong
Xinghui was a connected person of the Company and the continuing
transactions contemplated under the Lease-and-operate Agreement
A and the Lease-and-operate Agreement B (collectively, “Lease-and-
operate Agreements”) constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Lease-and-operate Agreements are set forth below.
Lease-and-operate agreement A

Date

1 January 2018

Parties

(1) Huidong Xinghui

(2) Huizhou Hazens

BanAHehui( BZHA) RAR B (BZHAN)
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B - HehuilR) & 1A 2E 85 22 8% 5 269,019,010
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TR 2 E BT AN460.00% © R iE
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Principal terms

Pursuant to the Lease-and-operate Agreement A, Huidong Xinghui shall
lease and grant the operation and management rights of Property A,
to Huizhou Hazens for a term of 10 years commencing on 1 January
2018 and ending on 31 December 2027. Huizhou Hazens shall operate
and manage Property A as resort apartments and be responsible for
processing of customer bookings received, collecting room charges and
other service charges from the customers, providing ancillary customer
services, housekeeping, marketing and promotion and so on. Huizhou {#%
Hazens shall pay the following amounts to Huidong Xinghui during the

term of the Lease-and-operate Agreement A:

-3

BERELLEHEA  BREEKDETEA
FTEMEEUR THYMRANKLEMERE -
BT - N \F-A—BRARE_Z2_tF
TZA=+—RIERB+F - EMAE%Mﬁ
BABEAKERERMEA TAEREE
EHEFHER ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%&ﬁm%%
B REREEPRE FKER - @#HEkE
o BME EMRHEELSHBEAN M H
AN AN A T © 58 T R

Period Amount payable on annual basis (RMB)

FH SERAEE(ARY)

1 January 2018-31 December 2018 Nil
—NF-A-RE=Z-N\F+ZA=+—H z

1 January 2019-31 December 2022
TE-NE-A-BEZE-_F+ZA=+—H

1 January 2023-31 December 2027
—EC = -A-HEZE-+F+ZA=+—H

=

The above amounts shall be paid on a quarterly basis, with each payment
to be made within the first week of each quarter.

1,200,000 for the year ending 31 December 2019, with a 5% increase for every
year afterwards based on the amount payable for the immediately preceding
year

BE-_Z-NF+-A=1—RIFE /12000007 Z&EFREL—F
Eﬁéﬁﬁ‘]ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%

1,430,825 for the year ending 31 December 2023, with a 3% increase for every
year afterwards based on the amount payable for the immediately preceding
year

BE_T_=H1+-_A=1—RBUFER14308257T ' ZBREFREL—F
E B S FAIE IN3%
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Lease-and-operate agreement B
Date

1 April 2018

Parties

(1) Huidong Xinghui

(2) Huizhou Hazens

Principal terms

Pursuant to the Lease-and-operate Agreement B, Huidong Xinghui
shall lease and grant the operation and management rights of Property
B, to Huizhou Hazens for a term of two years commencing on 1 April
2018 and ending on 31 March 2020. Huizhou Hazens shall operate
and manage Property B as resort apartments and be responsible for
processing of customer bookings received, collecting room charges and
other service charges from the customers, providing ancillary customer
services, housekeeping, marketing and promotion and so on.

Huizhou Hazens shall pay to Huidong Xinghui RMB1,200,000 per year
during the term of the Lease-and-operate Agreement B. The above
amount shall be paid on a quarterly basis, with each payment to be made
within the first week of each quarter.

In accordance with the terms set out above, the total of the amounts
payable by Huizhou Hazens to Huidong Xinghui during the year under
review under the Lease-and-operate Agreements, being the annual cap
in respect of the continuing transactions thereunder, is approximately
RMB545,000 for the period commencing on the completion date of the
Share Transfer, i.e. 18 July 2018, being the date on which Mr. Yuan
became a controlling shareholder and hence Huidong Xinghui became a
connected person of the Company, and ended on 31 December 2018.

Further details of the Lease-and-operate Agreements are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 January 2019.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group and
confirmed that they were entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i~ in accordance with the terms of the Lease-and-operate Agreements
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI”), the Company’s auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. ZhongHui Anda CPA
Limited has issued their unqualified letter to the Board containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with the Listing
Rules and confirming the matters as stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22
June 2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any director, full-time employee
or part time employee with weekly working hours of 10 hours or
above of the Group, any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate managerial) to the Group, any provider
of goods and/or services to the Group, any other person who, at the
sole determination of the Board, has contributed to the Group, and any
trustee of a trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any of the above
persons to become participants of the Scheme.
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EEEHRE

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition to the foregoing 30%
limit, the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date of completion of the
placing of the shares of the Company for the purpose of the listing on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 14 July 2011 i.e.
18,000,000 shares, unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company at general meeting. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 9,100,000,
representing approximately 2% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue.

An offer of share options under the Scheme shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the share options duly signed by the
grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within 28 days from the date of the offer.

Share options granted under the Scheme may be exercised at any time
during the option period after they have been granted by the Board but,
in any event, not more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant.
The share options granted shall lapse automatically (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme, subject to any
adjustments made pursuant to reorganisation of capital structure, shall
be a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of grant of the relevant share options and notified to the participant
and shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date on which the relevant share options are granted; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant share options are
granted; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the adoption
date, i.e. until 21 June 2021.

Further details about the principal terms of the Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
has not granted any share option under the Scheme. No share option
under this Scheme remains outstanding as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: Nil).

PENSION SCHEMES

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2017: nil). The Group participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of these schemes are
set out under “Employee benefits” in Note 3 of the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been audited by ZHONGHUI and a resolution for the reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. ZHONGHUI has been the auditor of the Company since
4 November 2014.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Yuan Fuer
Chairman

29 March 2019

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BET RS

T o

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 77 to 162, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Refer to Note 15 and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for impairment. The impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balances of property, plant and equipment
of HK$9,045,125 and right-of-use assets of HK$43,734,570 as at 31
December 2018 are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among other:

—  Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

—  Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use calculations;

—  Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount
rates); and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets are supported by the available
evidence.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Refer to Note 18 and Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities based
on the terms of the rental agreements and the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. These estimates are significant to our audit because
the right-of-use assets of HK$43,734,570 and lease liabilities of
HK$46,572,992 as at 31 December 2018 are material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, carrying amount of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2018 are based on assumptions
and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
—  Evaluating the Group’s assumptions and estimates;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the estimates to
supporting evidence such as rental agreements and source of
borrowing rate; and

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the calculations.

We consider that the Group’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Lok

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6084
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEBEREMEERRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt BT PBTT
(Restated)
(#eE7)
Revenue &= 6 45,547,168 16,281,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE (15,195,590) (12,429,773)
Depreciation of property, Y% - RENEEITE
plant and equipment (5,749,225) (4,773,982)
Amortisation of other asset H {th & 5 - (2,400,000)
Employee benefit expenses BEEBFIFX 7 (16,117,216) (21,604,443)
Utilities NzEid (3,001,903) (1,202,004)
Other operating expenses HithEiERX 12 (11,526,833) (11,804,147)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries T ERB QR IES 35 3,777,111 2,008,866
Gain on extension of convertible bonds ERATARES 2 WA - 4,102,252
Written off of property, WsEE - WE KRR
plant and equipment - (1,677,105)
Other income H AU A 9 3,311,795 1,049,873
Operating profit/(loss) BIERA(EE) 1,045,307 (32,448,772)
Finance costs BB R 10 (3,122,615) (10,120,875)
Loss before tax RREBLATES 18 (2,077,308) (42,569,647)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fris®i(FAx) 5 11 (3,110,248) 408,536
Loss for the year FREBE 12 (5,187,556) (42,161,111)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit 2 mES :
ltems that may be reclassified to AJREEF SR R o A -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences reclassified to ENOEEHERBARERN
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries fEH =5 85 750,970 (1,678,206)
Exchange differences on translating MEGINETSEEZIER =5
foreign operations (824,996) 446,021
Total comprehensive loss for the year £ R2EEIEE%E (5,261,582) (43,393,296)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRBERAMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —T—+F
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT PBTT
(Restated)
(#eE7)
Loss for the year attributable to: LT ALTEEFRESIEELEE .
Owners of the Company RNATHB A (4,378,134) (42,089,318)
Non-controlling interests IR (809,422) (71,793)
(5,187,556)  (42,161,111)
Total comprehensive loss UTNALTEEFAZEESSE :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIE7 2 =N (4,443,453) (43,327,634)
Non-controlling interests IR i (818,129) (65,662)
(5,261,582) (43,393,296)
Loss per share BRER 14
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) —EARCGE) (0.98) (10.37)
- Diluted (Hong Kong cents) —#5E OB (0.98) (10.37)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE BB R

As at 31 December 2018 R =ZE— \FE+_-_HA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF —E—+F
+=B=+—H +=-—A=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
BisE BT BIT BIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E7) (&E7)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% -~ 5 M &RE 15 9,045,125 11,592,467 9,167,109
Deposits e 16 = 23,988,000 23,988,000
Rental deposits HEZS 16 2,120,846 1,574,898 3,241,518
Goodwill EES 17 1,920,203 = =
Prepayments TEfIFIR 16 826,898 - 7,180,044
Other assets HEMEE - = 2,400,000
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 43,734,570 14,141,984 25,555,775
Deferred income tax assets REFTSHREE 19 4,795,488 4,286,514 3,187,371
62,443,130 55,583,863 74,719,817
Current assets REEE
Rental deposits HEZS 16 952,075 1,950,980 -
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ek
other receivables E b el k1A 16 1,171,190 625,981 21,762,008
Trade receivables FE U AR X 20 825,299 268,265 64,555
Inventories FE 21 204,831 = =
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS B 27,649,893 7,877,594 10,100,000
Investments at fair value through 12 AFET AR ZKE
profit or loss 22 5,922,551 - -
36,725,839 10,722,820 31,926,563
Total assets BEE 99,168,969 66,306,683 106,646,380
Current liabilities RBaE
Convertible bonds AR ES 23 - = 53,152,913
Trade and other payables P& RRFR N B P A 3R IE 24 6,951,988 6,962,750 8,592,847
Tax payable FERTIE 2,227,794 1,063,262 1,618,650
Provision for asset retirement WEEEEIREE 25 1,350,188 232,000 659,645
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 15,733,321 9,601,514 14,193,135
Borrowings B8 27 10,000,000 = -
36,263,291 17,859,526 78,117,190
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREBEE, (ARE) 462,548 (7,136,706)  (46,190,627)
Total assets less current BEAERRBAR
liabilities 62,905,678 48,447,157 28,529,190
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M FIRR R

As at 31 December 2018 R =ZE— \FE+_-_HA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F —T—tF
+=B=+—H +=-A=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$ HK$ HKS$
BisE BT BT BIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E7) (&E7)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Provision for asset retirement WMEEEEREE 25 846,987 4,280,635 3,135,871
Borrowings EE 27 11,860,063 16,935,781 -
Lease liabilities HEaFE 26 30,839,671 6,160,656 14,061,230
43,546,721 27,377,072 17,197,101
Net assets EEZE 19,358,957 21,070,085 11,332,089
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves BEXRR B
Share capital f&N 28 4,483,637 4,483,637 3,935,250
Reserves ] 14,950,466 15,843,465 7,396,839
Equity attributable to owners RARIEE AEEER
of the Company 19,434,103 20,327,102 11,332,089
Non-controlling interests FEFE A T (75,146) 742,983 =
Total equity LA 19,358,957 21,070,085 11,332,089

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 162 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Yuan Fuer
RER
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEERBER
:?511 = EMm!
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREAARE
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share Share Exchange Statutory equity Other  Shareholder's ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve*  contributions* losses* Sub-total interests Total
TakES
fx RipaE EddE ek EEER  HiBR  RRm EER Nt FERER &3t
Noted0c)  NoledO)  NoteS0il  Note30h)  Neted0g
10210 522 2 ]
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
i3 o AT AT AT AT AT AL AL AT AT AT
At1January 2017 asrestated ~ W=5-t%F-A-A
(&E3)) 3,935,250 204,694,080 1,959,236 1,742,763 4301492 8020110 20751024  (234071,866) 11,332,089 - 11,332,089
Total comprehensive loss FREEBBEE
for the year - - (1,238,316) - - - - (42089318 (43327,634) (65,662 (43,393,296)
Comerson ofcomerblebonds~ JSAFTHRES b 58387 56884307 . - ) = = - 5131 - B3
Disposalof parta nterest HE-HERBAANS R
na subsiciary - - - - - - - (808,645) (808,645) 808,645 -
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAE % - - - - - - (336,631) 356,631 = = =
At31 December 2017 and RZE-tE+zA=1-A
1 January 2018 as restated Rk=%-N\§-A-A
(885 4483637 261,578,477 720920 1,742,763 - 8020110 20394303 (276,613,198 20,327,102 742983 21,010,085
Total comprehensive loss FRAEEELE
forthe year - - (65,319) - - - - (4378134 (4443453 (818,129) (5,261,582
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLE 3 - - - - - (8020,110)  (14832811) 22,852,921 - - -
Waiver of nterest onborowings AR FIBHS
from Former Controling Shareholder 27 - - - - - - 3,550,454 - 3,550,454 - 3,550,454
At 31 December 2018 R=8-N§t-A=1-A 4483637 261,578,477 655,601 1,742,763 - - 9112036  (298,138411)  19434/103 (15,146) 19,358,957
Note: BfsE -

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of
HK$14,950,466 (2017: HK$15,843,465 (restated)) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

*

ZERBREEFREUBRARZEEHE
14,960,466/8 7L (= F —+4F : 15,843,465/8 7T

(8&75))) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NE T tf
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT T
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Cash flows from operating activities & EZHELNRERE
Loss before tax BRA AT EE (2,077,308) (42,569,647)
Adjustments for: KEFREE
Amortisation of other asset HibEER = 2,400,000
Bank interest income RITHEUA (77,165) (3,739)
Change in provision for asset retirement R & E1E R R &) (2,339,062) =
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEMEETE
equipment 5,749,225 4,773,982
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15,195,590 12,429,773
Gain on foreign exchange HNE W R (971,945) =
Finance cost on provision for asset WwEEEERBED
retirement [EL SN 173,072 190,469
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR MK 35 (8,777,111) (2,008,866)
Gain on extension of convertible bonds ERAMMRES 2 WA = (4,102,252)
Interest on borrowings from the AT AR R AE R RO I 2
Former Controlling Shareholder 1,174,736 435,781
Imputed interest costs on convertible AR ES 2 B
bonds - 8,140,523
Lease interest MEF S 1,774,807 1,354,102
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE - BE R&ER
equipment 518 34,747 =
Written off of property, plant and MBI - B k&
equipment - 1,677,105
Operating profit/(loss) before working LEE S EB AL E
capital changes swmH, (E8) 14,859,586 (17,282,769)
Change in trade and other receivables JE LS BR R R L At FE R TE Y
=) 8,338,854 20,927,956
Change in rental deposits HEZReHES 371,621 (284,360)
Change in trade and other payables FEASTBR SR I ELAth FE 5 5RIAHY
p5i)| (12,941,935) (2,118,293)
Change in inventories FTEEE) (80,245) =
Change in investments at fair value BATHERTAB®Z
through profit or loss TEEE) (5,922,551) =
Cash generated from operations KEMSIRS 4,625,330 1,247,534
Income tax paid B ATEHL (988,769) (415,473)
Net cash generated from operating K EBFTISHY
activities IR & 558 3,636,561 832,061

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= — =

—N\E+A=1+—HLLFE

2018 2017
—ZE-)N\#F —F
Note HK$ HK$
Bt BT BIT
(Restated)
(&eE5)
Cash flows from investing activites REFHEENRERE
Purchases of property, EEWME - BE L&
plant and equipment (708,761) (16,010)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — B A A 34 (1,016,258) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRE AT 35 1 (7,390)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE - JF%F% &L=
plant and equipment FriS k18 1,500,000 =
Interest received BFIE 77,165 3,739
Deposit refunded for proposed EREE-HOENEREERS
acquisition of a hotel 24,959,945 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEERBE, (FTR)H
investing activities IR & /F5E 24,812,092 (19,661)
Cash flows from financing activities REEEHEENRERE
Proceeds from borrowings E- iR 10,000,000 16,500,000
Convertible bonds interest paid EANEEIE: Hﬂii’%ﬂ% - (5,409,052)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (13,883,142) (14,082,142)
Lease interest paid ERHEERNE (1,774,807) (1,354,102)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (2,700,000) =
Net cash used in financing activities mME GRS ATARIRE FEE (8,357,949) (4,295,296)
Net increase/(decrease) incashand BE&RBELZEEYWEMN GHL)
cash equivalents HEE 20,090,704 (3,482,896)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUNHEES MRS EEY
beginning of the year 7,877,594 10,100,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ JMNEE R E B/ & (318,405) 1,260,490
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRNBERBESEEY
of the year 27,649,893 7,877,594
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is Suite 1705,
17/F., World-Wide House, No. 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2017, China Medical, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, was the Former Controlling Shareholder of the Company.
As at 31 December 2017, China Medical was owned by Mr. Ding
Yifan (“Mr. Ding”) and Mr. Huang Yun, former executive director of
the Company, as to 90% and 10% equity interest respectively. On
18 July 2018, Hehui (“Current Controlling Shareholder”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly owned by
Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), became controlling shareholder of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the hotel operations, hotel consultations and
management services and other related businesses in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group is also involved in the
money lending business.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years except as
stated below.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

—REHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRENFET REBAEET BB
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS WEER| (&)
(Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” (a) EBMBEHREEAFIR(==

HKFRS 9 (2014) has been applied retrospectively and resulted
in changes in the consolidated amount reported in the
consolidated financial statements as follows:

—mE)EHMTA]
FAVBHHRELNFIR(—F—N
FITEPER  LBBUREM R
RAE2W e TRFLINTE

31 December

2017
—ET—+tF
+=—HA=+—8
HK$
BIT
Consolidated statement of financial SEMBERRR
position
Decrease in share premium & o imER A 2,777,683
Decrease in accumulated losses RETEER 2,777,683

For the year ended
31 December 2017

BHEZZT—+F
+=A=+—H
IEFE
HK$
&I
Consolidated statement of profit or loss HSEEZEREMEERAR
and other comprehensive income
Increase in gain on extension of convertible & AT AL (& 5 Y U 2548 N
bonds 4,102,252
Increase in finance costs A& pK AN N 1,324,569
Loss per share BREE
Decrease in basic loss per share BREREERD BIL)
(Hong Kong cents) 0.69
Decrease in diluted loss per share Tl EEER A (BL)
(Hong Kong cents) 0.69

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective except as stated
below. The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

&R B 0 AR R R E AR AR (B AR A R
I RRERTEEM I REER] - HET
N ERRSN - AR E D ARG
FHR] RRER] BBV RE LA
FE - BAREEBUFHR] REERT
ERMBRES LD GHELER
BRPBRAEEBEAFEERE
H o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 “Leases”

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under HKAS 17

“Leases”.

HKFRS 16 has been applied retrospectively and resulted in
changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the financial

statements as follows:

2.

BRANETR] RAMEFT VBRI 35

£

(b)

R (#)
EBMBREERSE16%HE

BB BV B REERE 1657 M
5 ARBERAENBRERELES
SPERIE7TSRIAE R T 228
EIZHERRERAEEERHEER

(=
=]

o

- WEBHBRRAZRRAS
BEEL I T8

31 December 1 January
2017 2017
—T—+tF —T—+F
+=A=+—~ —A—H
HK$ HK$
BIT T

Consolidated statement FEMEMRRR

of financial position

Increase in right-of-use assets RS EE N 14,141,984 25,555,775
Increase in lease liabilities HEaEEMm 15,762,170 28,254,365
Decease in prepayments SEUNE YN 204,745 -
Decease in other payables E S FRIBER A 769,333 1,203,757
Increase in exchange reserve R 88,569 138,533
Increase in accumulated losses RETEEIE N 1,144,167 1,633,366

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

this BFR &K HIEAR AR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

BRANETR] RAMEFT VBRI 35

SR AR

[= R P

(b) BB KEREEAE1655HE |

(#&)
For the year ended
31 December 2017
BHE_T—+F
+—-A=+—8
IFFE
HK$
BT
Consolidated statement of profit or loss HEEEREMEEBARE
and other comprehensive income
Decrease in operating lease expenses B ERSORD 14,724,858
Increase in other operating expenses Hofth & B B S 12 0 451,784
Increase in finance costs BB X AN 0 1,354,102
Increase in deprecation of right-of-use assets 1 FR{E EEHTELL N 12,429,773
Decrease in exchange differences on ARG INETSE A 2 B E R
translating foreign operations 49,964
Loss per share BREE
Decrease in basic loss per share BREXREERD B
(Hong Kong cents) 0.12
Decrease in diluted loss per share FREEEERD BI)
(Hong Kong cents) 0.12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments

which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to

the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that

right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

FESHBE®)

HRERE(®)

& — B A B BUR R i 2 as
HERIE() L EREZ A FEMZHER
AR B EAHRE 2 A FELE[)RA R EE
ZHBAREEFENBERZMNBARZ
EAIER T B2 N G R R E R R ERE
ZER e

SENRTNZ RS - HHEASTEH
T A - RIER HIREBBBTHE
HAENIAE - FARLRSENT A
CERYI] PGEOE S U
¥ - RREAE BRI EE — -

IR s fE Y AR R B B R SR BN
B ARz - JFERER R AR A I
PARKR MG EREB R ZERTANZT
RN FREBR R EMEEBARK
2N AEFERBIRERARBER A LZHE
DB NS EE M E AR E R AL

BakEME2HERASTD EEBRAR
AR A MIEERACR - AR RS
TR i as R B A 4G ER

AABRTEEBREE IR Z B AR
BBEERDREDRBER S (BAHA A
SMEEBNETZRS) Nk - 124
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ME R EMERE RN ER - 1LH
BRARBHEEA -

Annual Report 2018
—B—\FFR

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the previously held equity
interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
loss. The method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill is
the same as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= — =

—N\E+A=1+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and 7 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins
when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the
Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings over the lease term of 1 year to 15 years
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the lease payments discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined,
or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an
initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets
of value below US$5,000 (approximately equivalent to HK$39,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

—  Financial assets at amortised cost;
— Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of
any interest income and dividend income. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected
credit losses”) for trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables) has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result from default
events on that financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds
into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability
and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is included in
the liability component. The difference between the fair value of
the convertible bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve. The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The derivative
components are measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the
equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied
over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

@)

(b)

©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organized by the government in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the retirement scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(o) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except goodwill
and deferred income tax assets and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

@

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may be not
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset value may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal or net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of the operations.

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities based on the terms of the rental agreements and the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are required in
determining the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©

(e)

€

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or writedown technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
(“CGU”) to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation require the Group to estimate the present value
of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
containing goodwill using suitable discount rates. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation and impairment loss made for
the year are disclosed in note 17.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

()  Asset retirement obligations

©)

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel and office premises upon the
end of lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based on
certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs based on
quotations.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables, cash
and bank balances and deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no concentration
of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. It has
policies in place to ensure that sale of rooms to corporate
customers are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to walk-in customers are made via credit cards
or cash.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. BIEAKRERE#)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EHREKE)

112

Rental deposits are mainly paid to five (2017: seven) domestic
private entities who are currently leasing the office, hotel
premises and staff quarter to the Group. Other receivables
primarily represent the amounts due from third and related
parties which have long business relationship with the Group.
Taking into consideration settlements subsequent to year end,
management considers provision for impairment has been
provided appropriately.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

—  external credit rating (if available);

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations; and

— significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 120 days of when they fall
due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

5. BIEAKRERE#)

(b) EREERE)
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Liquidity risk (c) RBEELRM
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected REE 2 BOR AT RIER KB
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient MEVERF K - UEREFZEHRS
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short i NENACHRRARSES
and longer term. =K
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as AEEeRABECEBHALTET
follows:
Total
g
Less than Between 1 Between2 Undiscounted Carrying
1 year and 2 years and 5 years cash flow amount
REB
—£R —EZWME MERRE ReHE BHEE
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At31December2018 ~ R-ZF-NFt-A=1-A
Trade and other payables  FERERTA R Kt E7UR 6,951,988 - - 6,951,988 6,951,988
Borrowings EE 10,000,000 13,800,000 - 23,800,000 21,860,063
16,951,988 13,800,000 - 30,751,988 28,812,051
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —ZT— N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

5. BIEAKRERE#)

(c) RBESEMRE)

Total

faga]
Less than Between 1 Between2  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year and 2 years and 5 years cash flow amount

REEER
—ER —FEME MEEREF Reng RAE
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
At31December2017  R=F—tF+=A=+-H
(restated) (&E5)

Trade and other payables  JERERF R EL A fERTF0UR 6,962,750 = = 6,962,750 6,962,750
Borrowings 58 - - 20,033,333 20,033,333 16,935,781
6,962,750 - 20,033,333 26,996,083 23,898,531

(d) Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s other borrowings bore
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore were subject to
fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2018, as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

(f)

5.

BEEREREZ)

(e) €MTAZSE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Financial assets: EREE :
Investments at fair value through BATEFABRZIRE
profit or loss 5,922,551 -
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEK AT EN SR EE 31,729,069 11,877,624
Financial liabilities: THMAME:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs & $HAk ANEHEN SR B & 28,812,051 23,898,531

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(f)

AF{E

RAUBRRAKRAITAEESHE
EXEBBENREERESEHNR
FEBE °

RFERTS2EEEFEAETZ
BRFRHHHE—REEMKE
EE-RAREMNZERS - AT
BZAVEFEERAFESAE
H - BRI RAGERTEZ G
EEMzBABED R=/R

F1RBMARE  AEEAEFER
RSz HREERBELERMSZ
HECREHE)

F2RBABE  BRE1RAREMN
Sh - ER A ERSARBEERDRGE2E
ERREBHARE -

FIRBARE : BESRBEZEZX
BIRE ARUE -

AEEZBREREEEFRENE
BzBRALBRES B - BREAR
B = ERR ERZ— -
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—— Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —ZT— N\F+-_A=+—HILFE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MKERERE®
() Fair values (Continued) H DFEE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: @) FlEERFEE :
Fair value measurements using:
ERAUNTHABE 2 ATETE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
£-R St 14 E=H @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\F
+=A=+-H
Recurring fair value REMNFETE
measurements:
Investments at fair value BATEFABRZTE
through profit or loss
— Investment funds ~-REES - - 5,922,551 5,922,551
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on (b) MRIFFEIERIENFEGTENE
level 3: EHRE
Investments
at fair value
through
profit or loss Total
BAYE
sFABRE
ZRE st
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—HA—H - -
Purchases BE 5,922,551 5,922,551
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+=-A=+—H 5,922,551 5,922,551
116 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MBRERERZ)
() Fair values (Continued) H DFEE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group c R=-ZF—NF+-A=+—H
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value I E B AT R AT G B FE 7 R 2
measurements at 31 December 2018: Flait = TR A 15 E =R

DEHI IR -
The Group’s Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the REEMTHRARE BT
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities required REETENEERBEL
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair ANEEFZ2(BEEIEBRATF
value measurements. The Chief Executive Officer reports Bt E) - THERRIEZAF
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value BN EEERNESSER 17
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and BRHHEESTFEPMR
results are held between the Chief Executive Officer and SmmERF REEER -
the Board of Directors at least twice a year.
For level 3 fair value measurements, the management MEIBR AT EFEMS - B
will estimate the investment funds fair value classified as BEKEESREEA MY E
investments at fair value through profit or loss based on BEGEDER/ZATEETA
the rate of return published by the financial institutions. BasitEEe N NTFE-
Level 3 fair value measurements EIEHR AT EGE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\E+=A=+—H
Effect on fair
value for increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs ~ Range of inputs Fair value
SYENHATE
BE HER FUBESH g i AVE
HK$
BT
Investment funds classified as Discounted cash flow Rate of retun 354%-41%  Increase 5,922,551
investments at fair value through ~ BiBR &7 2 % 354%%F4.1%

profit or loss
NERBRATEF ARG RE
HREES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. R&EFTER
The Group has one reportable segment as follows: AEE—ER 2D T ¢
- Hotel operations — JBEEE
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that REE 2 A 2D IHREN R E @ &R
offer different products and services. They are managed separately B2 RIS EN - ARFEBERT
because each business requires different technology and marketing Bz EMSHERERRE - SR 2R3
strategies. THERIEEE o
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same KOS B & R T IRUR BB A TR M SES P
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment M EETHERA B - S ERTEER
profits or losses do not include interest income, finance costs, BIRA - AR - ZEEME AR R
auditor’s remuneration, legal and professional fee, head office and HEER  AREREMCERY -

corporate expenses.

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year is REER 2 MO AR D FBEREZILT -
as follows:
Hotel
operations
EIREE
HK$
BT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—\+-A=+—HLEFE
Revenue U as 45,547,168
Segment profit pan: ikl 19,003,582
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREHEITE 4,747,259
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 10,373,520

118 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Hotel
operations
EIREE
HK$
ST
(Restated)
€<=y
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—HILFE
Revenue e 16,281,691
Segment loss o EpEsIE (493,110)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREETE 2,546,350
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,336,765
Written off of property, plant and equipment WEEE - BE MRS 1,677,105
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR /K 2,008,866
A reconciliation of segment results to loss before tax is provided as D EPEEEARTLAT B IR 2 ¥TRRE T T ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#&E7)
Total profit/(loss) of reportable segments ] 25 3@ A, (E518) 4258 19,003,582 (493,110)
Unallocated corporate expenses, net AOMEERT F5E (18,035,440) (31,959,401)
Interest income MEWA 77,165 3,739
Finance costs BB RA (3,122,615) (10,120,875)
Loss before tax bR RES1E (2,077,308) (42,569,647)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from major customers:

All revenue was derived in the PRC during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. Revenue from two (2017: nil) customers
of the Group’s hotel operation segment represents approximately
HK$9,974,683 (2017: HK$NIl) and HK$6,485,297 (2017: HK$NI)
respectively of the Group’s total revenue.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
and rental deposits located in Hong Kong and the PRC
were HK$8,226,664 (2017: HK$5,929,328 (restated)) and
HK$47,300,132 (2017: HK$43,793,123 (restated)), respectively.

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

REXBREFZWE :

REZ_ZT—\FE_FT—+tF+_H
=+—BIFE - ek EREHRE -
AEBHEEESPMEG(ZT—LF -
) REMIRA D B4 AN & B U s
0,974,683 L (—_E—tF : THT)R
6,485,297 L( — B —+4F : T T) o

MNREABRTPBENIERSEELECT
PREEHRBEELRAERS) DA
8,226,664 L ( —ZF — 4 : 5,929,328
7T (K& 51))) 247,300,132 T (=&
—+4F : 43,793,123/ T (KR EF)) °

FrA RS S ARSI T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
Sales from hotel operations G EERIHE
— hotel room rental and —BEEEHAE X
conference room rental SEHEHES 45,547,168 16,281,691
Revenue from contracts with HEFHE LW
customers 45,547,168 16,281,691

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —T— N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. KREFHER 2
(Continued)
Revenue from major customers: (Continued) REXEEFZWE : (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: HE PR E QWS 2 2T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Geographical markets WIS
PRC F 45,547,168 16,281,691
Major service FERK
Rental of hotel rooms and BEREERSHEERS
conference room 45,547,168 16,281,691
Timing of revenue recognition T RR W as 1Y B R
Over time BE B 2K, 45,547,168 16,281,691
Rental of hotel rooms and conference room BIEREERSEZZEHS
Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room rental is REBOERER®ZEZHESMBEEKRISR
recognised when the services are rendered. TRt RTFBFHERR o

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 7. EEEFBEXX(BEEESHN)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017

—EB-N\EF —F—+tF

HK$ HK$

BIT BIT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TENER 14,784,044 19,652,321
Pension obligations RKREEIE 1,187,404 1,064,263
Other benefits EfbEH 145,768 887,859
16,117,216 21,604,443
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEFHM
(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows: (a) ZESBZHFMMEHIOT :
Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits schemes
Fees  Inducement inkind  contribution Total

e 28 Bife
He ®BE  REUEAN EIE it
Notes HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i B B BT BT BT

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-ZE-N\E+=A

ST-HLFE
Executive directors: HTES:
Ye Shusheng - (@) 1,302,857 202,950 - 16,500 1,522,307
Huang Yun 5Z () 816,667 - - - 816,667
Min Znidong K& © - - - - -
Dai Lifeng CIVA: (b) 490,000 - - - 490,000
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Yuan Fuer RER d 5 - - - 5
Hu Xinglong il d 5 - - - 5
Lu Zefeng R (o) 816,667 - - - 816,667
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Wu Jiin REH 3] 45,484 - - - 45,484
Du Hongwei PN &) 45,484 - - - 45,484
Li Zhou &35 ) 45,484 - - - 45,484
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco BEE (o) 81,667 - - - 81,667
Cheng Chai Fu gEs i} 81,667 - - - 81,667
Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest iRk (o) 81,667 - - - 81,667

3,807,654 202,950

16,500 4,027,104
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e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —ZT— N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) The emoluments of each director were as follows:

8. EEFM =)

(a) BEZBZHMESMT @ (&)

(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees Inducement inkind  contribution Total
TR Efhe
ik #@He  REWET HE5A et
Notes HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$
i3 B BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2017 ~ HZ-F-+#&
TZAZt-HLEE
Executive directors; HTEE
Huang Yun 52 (o) 1,028,387 - - - 1,028,387
Min Zni Dong B& () 1,424,906 - - - 1,424,906
Wu Li Xin RV () 3,307,691 - - - 3,307,691
Dai Lifeng LIV < (b) 720,000 - - - 720,000
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Chung Wai Man EEY () 574,286 - - = 574,286
Lu Zefeng i (b) 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
directors:
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco E2E (o) 120,000 - - - 120,000
Leung Siu Hong k& ) 22,903 - - = 22,903
Cheng Chai Fu gEE i} 97,419 - - - 97,419
Wong Yiu Kit, Emest Rk (o) 120,000 - - - 120,000
8,615,592 - - - 8,615,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) The emoluments of each director were as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

With effect from 15 December 2017, Ye Shusheng was
appointed as executive director and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”).

Huang Yun and Dai Lifeng resigned as executive directors, Lu
Zefeng resigned as an non-executive director and Tso Hon Sai
Bosco and Wong Yiu Kit Ernest resigned as independent non-
executive directors with effect from 6 September 2018.

Min Zhidong was appointed and resigned as an executive
director with effect from on 1 April 2017 and 1 March 2018
respectively.

Yuan Fuer and Hu Xinglong were appointed as non-executive
directors with effect from 15 August 2018.

Wu Jilin, Du Hongwei and Li Zhou were appointed as
independent non-executive directors with effect from 15 August
2018.

Cheng Chai Fu was appointed and resigned as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 9 March 2017 and 6
September 2018 respectively.

Wu Li Xin resigned as CEO and executive director with effect
from 30 November 2017.

Chung Wai Man was appointed and resigned as a non-executive
director with effect from 13 February 2017 and 30 November
2017 respectively.

With effect from 9 March 2017, Leung Siu Hong resigned as an
independent non-executive director.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$202,950
(2017: HK$nil) was paid by the Group to Ye Shusheng as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no (2017:
nil) inducement paid by the Group to any of the directors as
compensation for loss of office.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

8. EEHM =)
(a) BRESZHFMEBIIOT : (#2)

OE

(@)

BE-T—tHF+_A+HARL i
HAEBRZESNTEERITHAR
(MTBAEE ) »

BT /\FALARAE #ERK
BUERENTES  ERERE
FRTEEREZERERMBHE
BYIFRITESE -

A-F—tEMA-AR=F—N
E=A—BE BEESFEEE
ARBHINTES -

BE-ZE-N\FNAATHHEE RE
TERPURERERIENTES -

BE-ZEZ-N\FNATHHAEL RE
W HRERFAERERBLIE
WITES -

BE_E—+F=ZAhLEHE-_ZT—N
FAANARE  BEEDRNERE
BREEENIERITES -

BE-ZE—tH+—-A=tHEL R
THEHETRAR L AITES -

BE-Z—tF_A+T=AR_-F
—tF+—A=tHE EEXH
PERERREBHEIFRNITES -

B-Z—tF=RANAE RIE
BB IFNITES °

REEZE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HI
FE - A& E R A 2 9202,950
EITIE A INAZ R B 85 5 22 B
ZE—F L E) UERAEETR
MEREESEHERFBE(ZE—t
F . EERBERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEHFM =
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EREEREFAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FRN - AEEBREESHFALEE
included four (2017: four) directors whose emoluments are WE(ZE—+F  mR)ES - B
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of SR EXEY 2T RE - HeR
the remaining one (2017: one) individual is set out below: —Z(ZZE—tF  —8B) ATHH

SEINOT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Salaries, wages and allowances e TEMER 947,100 1,970,000
Pension obligations RIKEET 18,000 18,000
965,100 1,988,000

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e EEw T -

Number of individuals

AE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0%1,000,000/%8 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEETERAEBRZ RS
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join AT RIS 1E ARSI INA SN
or upon joining the Group and no emoluments were paid by ARNEE R 2 2R - LA RAREE I &

the Group as compensation for loss of office. X HE B Ve AR E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HgA
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$ HK$
BT o
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 77,165 3,739
Income from TV drama series BEREIUA - 66,263
Food and beverage BRI R 146,181 170,797
Waiver of other payable e B A RN RIE - 378,510
Others Hi 20,534 430,564
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Y e F R 728,853 =
Change in provision for asset retirement — ¥REEE 18 R B & 2,339,062 =
3,311,795 1,049,873
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @E KA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKADHTOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT B TT
(Restated)
(g&&=75)
Finance cost on provision for asset RS EERBEENRERA
retirement 173,072 190,469
Interest on borrowings from the AT AR AR SR & S B FI) 2
Former Controlling Shareholder 1,174,736 435,781
Imputed interest costs on AR ES < B
convertible bonds - 9,489,683
Lease interest MER S 1,774,807 1,354,102
3,122,615 11,470,035
Amount capitalised Bt E5E - (1,349,160)
3,122,615 10,120,875
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 1. FRfEHix (E&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ HK$
BT o
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BNEATH 8 — FE RIS 5
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETE - 415,473
Current tax — PRC corporate BNEARAIE — R B ZEFT1S R
income tax
Under—provision in prior year BEFERETR 12,605 =
Provision for the year FEREE 3,229,444 =
3,242,049 415,473
Deferred income tax (Note 19) IEIEFTSH(HI3E19) (131,801) (824,009)
3,110,248 (408,536)

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017. The amount provided for the year ended 31 December
2018 was calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) based on the
assessable profit for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, PRC corporate income tax
is provided at 25% based on the assessable profit for the year less
allowable losses brought forward. No provision for PRC corporate
income tax is required since the Group has no assessable profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

AEERFAEHRENEBE LR S HAY
TR -

AR AEBREE - N\ER T+
F+ A=+ BHULFEIERRER S
R BEARE SRS REE - INE
EE - \F+-A=1T—HIFEEE
ZESRIARNFEE 7 R BUR | A E AR
FHE16.5%(ZZF—+tF : 16.5%)7TH °

2T N\FE+_A=1+—HILEFE "
R B> 2E PR 1S B 4% F IR aR o ) Rk BT
AR B EE25% - MR AEEREZE
T+t FE+-A=t+—HIFENERE
FRbE A - BUEARL R B TS REHR
B o
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é Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (Continued) 1. FrEHBExX (&) #)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product SHATERFEAIEERNERARS
of loss before tax multiplied by tax rates applicable to profit or loss }a SRR 2 RAEMEERAT
in the respective countries is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT ow
(Restated)
(#eE7)
Loss before tax bR BB I8 (2,077,308) (42,569,647)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LEANSBIEZRAEH
applicable to profits or loss in the HEGTERNTIE
respective countries 1,681,734 (6,428,083)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AR R R 2
deductible 2,055,687 7,424,834
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  FiERIBEEHNHETE 427,968 1,867,823
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not f& A 4E Al ﬂiﬁﬁu I ES A
previously recognised WS (215,775) (2,823,960)
Tax effect of income not taxable ,m/,\p%muy)\mmk SR B (639,807) (809,854)
Under provision in prior years BTEFERETR 12,605 415,473
Unrecognised temporary difference ARIERE R E% (212,164) (54,769)
Income tax expenses/(credit) FTSBiAsx (k) 3,110,248 (408,536)
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%A

SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12.

12.

13.

14.

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the
following:

FRER

REBRAFE 2 BEIDENG,(GTA)
I

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT T
(Restated)
(#&&57)
Auditor’s remuneration* A & 1,000,000 1,000,000
Depreciation of property, Yz - BB REETE
plant and equipment 5,749,225 4,773,982
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15,195,590 12,429,773
Net foreign exchange gain* PE 5 Uk e SR8 (728,853) (3,244)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ W (38,777,111) (2,008,866)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEEREZER
plant and equipment 34,747 -
Written off of property, plant and BEEEE - B R (HRE15()

equipment (note15(a))

- 1,677,105

*

These items are included in “Other operating expenses” or “Other
income” of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DIVIDEND 13.

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

LOSS PER SHARE 14.

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$4,378,134 (2017:
HK$42,089,318 (restated)) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 448,363,708 (2017: 405,862,605) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for

the year (2017: Nil). Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is
same as basic loss per share for both years.

Y RFRATIIAGERERTH[ HiE
BRI Sk B A

8=\

REBEE2-_ZT—N\FER_ZT—+F+-A
= +t—HIFE  EEMEEZRNEMA

N
BRER
(@) BRELXER

RARHEE NELRSRERGEDN
AEERARAREAR ABEAR
FEEIE4378134B L (—T—+
F 1 42,089,318 T (L EF ))&
RAFEEBETTBRMETS
2£7448,363,708 [ (= F —tF
405,862,6050% ) ©

(b) BREFEHR

FA - ARBWEDETECETE
BR(ZT—1F &) - Bt - %W
EFE 2 SR TR RRSRERE
BHER -
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é Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - MERRE
Leasehold ~ Furniture and Office Motor  Construction
improvements fixtures  equipments vehicles  inprogress Total
HENEEE  GAREE  BOEREB RE HRIR a5
Notes HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
iR BT D B BT BT B
COST: HA
1 January 2017 R=2—+F-f-A 1N975701 5215050 2,459,329 70375 915929 21,260,764
Addftions e 232,000 11,189 4821 - 8m0204  87772M4
Transfer g 9,445,133 - - - (0445133) -
Written off s ) (3,378,979) - - - - 3378979
Exchange realignment EHAE 171,666 208,612 63,380 = - 463,658
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+-A=+-AR
1 January 2018 “Z-)\f-A-H 18445501 5454851 2,507,530 703,755 - 27131657
Addtions e 126,020 336,034 246,707 - 236,561 945,322
Acqisition of a subsidiary YE-RINEAA 2,354,264 - 2040411 - - 4304675
Disposal of subsidlaries HERBA - - - (708,755 - (703,755
Disposal HE (3761266 (1105762 (1,459,779) - - (5326800
Exchange realignment IE R (434.952) (211,066) (193,162) - - (839,180
At 31 December 2018 R=8-NE+=A=+-H 16,720587 4474057 3,161,714 - 236561 24,601,919
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEHTERAE -
AND IMPAIRMENT:
1 Janvary 2017 R-E2—tF-F-A 6847020 3863118 1263495 129,022 - 1210265
Charge for the year EpER 397843 347198 307598 140,751 - 4TI398
Eliminated on written off s ) (1,701,874) - - - - (1,701,874
Exchange realignment ER A% 91,215 211,887 61,325 - = 364,427
At 31 December 2017 and RZF—tETZA=ZT-AR
1 January 2018 “Z-/\f-A-A 921479 4422203 1632418 269773 - 15,539,190
Charge for the year ERiiE 5,001,284 222,856 401,928 123,157 - 5749995
Elminated on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMER s - - - (392,930) - (392,930)
Eliminated on disposal HERH (3,516,087) (552,478) (723,489) = - (4792,059
Exchange realignment EH AR (280,881) (202,887) (62,870) = - (546,638)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+=A=1-H 10419112 3880604 1,247,988 - - 15556794
CARRYING AMOUNTS: R
At 31 December 2018 R=8-NE+=fA=1-H 6,310475 584363 1,013,726 - 26561 9,045,125
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tEFZA=T-H 9230725 1,032,648 895,112 433,082 - 11592467
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2017, leasehold
improvement of HK$1,677,105 was written off as a result of
the replacement of old renovation by new renovation in one
hotel.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to HK$1,349,160 (Note
10) on qualifying assets.

15. 1% - MERRE @)

(@)

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HLHF
B BAREF—EBEENEEER
WHRERE @ MEHEMEERE
1,677,105 7T °

HE—Z—+E&+-A=+—RHIt%F
B AEFERABREEBAE
ERKAN1,349,16078 7T (Fi5E10) ©
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16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

16. Y FRIE -

BE R HMBEWR

RECEIVABLES b1 |
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt BT BIT
(Restated)
(gg=5)
Prepayments and deposits paid EARERE RS
Prepayments TEfSRIE 1,817,132 420,094
Deposits paid mENEF (@) - 23,988,000
1,817,132 24,408,094
Deposits Be
Rental deposits HE%e 3,072,921 3,525,878
Other receivables Hith W FIE 180,956 205,887
Total prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEfIZIAE « £4 &
receivables Hh FEMRIB A2 RE 5,071,009 28,139,859
The amounts of prepayments, deposits ~ FERTFIA ~ 12& &
and other receivables are analysed as HEM R GIES R
follows: DT ¢
Non-current portions ERENE D
Deposits paid [mENEF (@) - 23,988,000
Rental deposits HEZRE 2,120,846 1,574,898
Prepayments TEFRIE 826,898 =
2,947,744 25,562,898
Current portions RENE D
Prepayments and deposits paid ENRIEREiRE 990,234 420,094
Rental deposits HEZE 952,075 1,950,980
Other receivables F A FEUGRIR 180,956 205,887
2,123,265 2,576,961
5,071,009 28,139,859
Note: MisE -
(@  The amount of HK$23,988,000 represented deposit paid for proposed (@) 23,988,000/ 7T A5 & UUE —REIEE51%

acquisition of 51% equity interest in a hotel. The Group demanded

refund and received the refund in February 2018.
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17. GOODWILL 17. 58
HK$
BT
Cost RN
At 1 January 2018 N=ZE—\F—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—FME A F] 2,060,823
Exchange realignment ME 5, B (140,620)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\FE+ZA=+—H 1,920,203

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUSs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

REBE O IR 2 BB TR U I 9 B
EHEHPAREREBEHIBREEESETT
(ReELBT]) - BEZEEES RN
N

2018
—E-N\E
HK$
BT
Hotel operations BEEE
Huizhou Hazens East Resort Travel Services BING EREDE IR AR TE B R A A
Limited (“Huizhou Hazens”) (MEMEED 1,920,203

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined on the
basis of value in use using discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

ReELBM A NESBIREEER
EBERMBERBASREEETE - BHRE
MEEARAZ EERERVMAERIER
R RBEX - BEENR KRS ZRE -
AREEFAAI R B SHEEREZ
FHE MR E A B K E AR 2 FRTAT
MRMAFTRER R - BEXALBSELE
& XA E REFHREER
RREE - BEEMNRR WS TIBEEE
PIRFERTSRRASEE -
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period using the growth rate of 3%. This rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from Huizhou
Hazens is 12.5%.

17.

BE )

ARBFEURSREEA R EES
R R AT BRI AR 2 R 3%
2RI BIAE - ERETBEEH
THL P RBERE -

RAUABBRBEMNA EBARSRE 2 MER
12.5% °

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEAEMRABIER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E5l)
Right-of-use assets EREEE 43,734,570 14,141,984
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. EFRREEE &)
2018 2017
—2-N\F —FtF
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
(Restated)
(&&E7))
The maturity analysis, based on ERRURIREREMNREE
undiscounted cash flows, of the HEBEMZHBELSMIT
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:
Less than 1 year —F AR 16,215,542 9,848,256
Between 1 and 2 years —ERF 7,173,510 6,627,151
Between 2 and 5 years NZE RF 10,858,145 =
Over 5 years FFE 23,435,777 =
57,682,974 16,475,407
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FTREEENERS
assets
Land and buildings i R EEY) 15,195,590 12,429,773
Lease interests HEFS 1,774,807 1,354,102
Expenses related to short-term leases %2 EiFTH E#ERARI X 237,928 171,953
Total cash outflow for leases HERe R LA 15,657,949 15,386,244
Additions to right-of-use assets EINMFEREEE 31,219,306 =
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 15 years (2017: 5 to 10 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual bias and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

T

The followings amounts are related to leases with a related party: (Mr.
Yuan has control over the related company)

18. FRREEE®)

Wi

(@)

AEEHEEZE LR EEY - HEWHH
BETFHRBER2E16F (-5
5E10%) - MEMRKIIREEA B FRE
T#A - BESETRAIRR MR - 3%
HEWBTRERRZLY  HEEENS
FREEFRAENER -

T eRupmrmEEse - (REL
e LN D)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

(Restated)

(FE75)

Right-of-use assets FREEE 12,136,358 =
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets AL ETER S 1,160,194 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 13,313,912 =
Lease interests HEF S 305,958 =
Total cash outflow for leases HERSR LA 945,564 =
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19. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the
Group.

19.

ELEFEHERE

TXBAEEERN T BRIEHIAEE -

Decelerated
Deferred Lease tax

expense  expenses depreciation  Provisions Tax loss Total

BEREX  HERY BANENE B BEER ag

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2017 W-E-t£-f-H - - 4197702 783967 1265702 3187371
Credited/(debited) to proft or loss ERzEA/ (M8 ER (1)

for the year (Note 11) - - 237,630 (172,715) 759,004 824,009

Exchange differences ERZE - - 95,853 52,043 127,238 275,134
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R=F—+&+= £+ AR

—\&E—R- - - 1,471,185 663,295 2,152,034 4,286,514

Acquisition of a subsiclary uﬁzﬂﬁ Fﬁw ’An 646,196 - - - - 646,196
Credited/(debited) to proft or loss ERtA/ (8 ) EE (1)

for the year (Note 11) (624,836) 622,764 (464,861) (202,241) 800,975 131,801

Exchange differences EHER (21,360) (22,698) (68,608) (26,713) (139,684) (269,023

At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+t=-A=+-H - 600,106 947,716 434,34 2,813,325 4,795,488

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry w175 A 5 745 7 25 1) A2 5 1B HE 81 R R B ER A

forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit Z%Ti FIEIE - RlestrsdE s HIBEERE

through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December REEFIEMEE - BHE-ZT—/\F+=

2018, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$5,788,280 (2017: HK$5,974,739) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$31,705,574 (2017: HK$31,672,700) that can be
carried forward against taxable income. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$6,551,292 (2017: HK$8,808,743) that
will expire in 2023 (2017: 2022). Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is HK$448,721 (2017: HK$305,941). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

ﬂ:+ B - ZREE N A] (e AL EE AR
£ FE SR TR LA 2 E51831,705,57478 7T (=
T —+4F © 31,672,700/8 7T ) fERIE L P

BRI EES7882808 L (T —+F
5,974,739 70 ) © RHER %)féléﬁéﬂéﬁ%

BRZTE_=F (=T —+F:
E)i'J,H;qZG,551,292/%7E(—¥*’tﬁz ;
8,808,743/ 7T ) 2 518 - HAnFiIBE I8 A
R B[R B 18 5 o

RMEHR - BRERKBARRD IREF)
AERELEHEABNEREE=EBE
448,721 L (ZE—+4F | 305,941%
TT) o FRRA 7N 52 [ 1] LA 2R I B = B R
EREE - BZE=ZR 0 LKA gt
BE - ARG L EERERAE o
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to corporate
customers with an appropriate credit history on credit terms of
30 days. Trade receivables of HK$480,727 (2017: HK$57,122)
were past due but not impaired. Management considered that
no recoverability problem on these trade balances as a result of
subsequent settlement received up to the date of this report and
the agreement of the revised repayment schedule with certain trade

20.

FE U B 7R

AEENEESERS T EAEARRA
REE - AEKELAEAAEEELEN
CERFPRH=TRNBEETFHEERFEE
H o EUNARR480,727BTT(Z T —+5F :
57,1228 L ) EBHEL ER(E - EIEE
RE - HREEARRE RS WBIERS
BH0R - WEREPHE T REE SRR
ZRIERTESGTEIER % - MREFE D

debtors. AR UL O I R A o
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —F—+F
HK$ HK$
BIT 7T
Trade receivables FEURER 3K 825,299 268,265

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

A ERUPRRZ BREe DATAN T

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —F—+tF

HK$ HKS$

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired i B TR 344,572 211,143
0 — 30 days past due EHAI0Z 30K 38,364 1,512
31 - 60 days past due #HA31 260K 81,255 =
61 — 90 days past due #HA61 290K 28,494 935
91 — 120 days past due BHAO1 = 120K 325,849 33,134
121 — 365 days past due BHA121 365K 6,765 21,541
480,727 57,122

825,299 268,265
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
credit losses also incorporate forward looking information.

FEUBRRR (&)

AEBERATBVERELNFEREAT
MBI ERA A B 5 IR E B TRE
ERBEHRFERREESE - AFtE
BEHEEEE  BHRKFEDRELR
EERRFHENAHAEOE - BREE
BEEITE S REEER -

Neither past 0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121 - 365

due nor days days days days days
impaired past due past due past due past due past due Total

a8 ki ol s ] il
MERE 0Z30% 31Z60% 61Z90%  91ZE120%  1212365K Eh)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT BT AT AT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\ETZA=T-H 344,572 38,364 81,255 28494 325,849 6,765 825,299
Weighted average expected lossrate [T HRHFER 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Recelvable amount (HKS) AREEE (L) 34,572 38,364 81,25 28,494 325,849 6,765 825,299
Loss alowance (HK3) EEAE(AT) - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1-H 211,143 1512 - 935 33,134 21,541 268,265
Weighted average expected lossrate  IIETREFRER 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Recelvable amount (HKS) ARE2E (L) 211,143 1512 - 935 33134 21,541 268,265
Loss allowance (HKS) EEE(ET) - - - - - - -

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Consumables SHFEm 204,831 =
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22. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

22 AT EFABRZZRE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —F—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Unlisted investment funds, at fair value ZAFEFEMIFLTREES 5,922,551 =

23. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) were issued on 14 June 2016.
The Bonds were extended for one year on 14 June 2017 (the
original due date of the Bonds) to 14 June 2018. The Bonds were
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the date of issuance of the Bonds and the business day immediately
prior to the maturity date (i.e. one year from the date of extension of
the Bonds or if such date was not a business day the next business
day). The face value of the Bonds was HK$51,000,000. The Bonds

were convertible to 54,838,708 shares per HK$0.93 bond.

If the Bonds have not been converted, the Company will pay to
the holders of the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of (i)
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (i) interest
accrued and outstanding pursuant to terms and conditions of the
Bonds; and (jii) a premium of 7% per annum of the principal amount
of the Bonds outstanding. Interest of 8% will be paid annually up
until that the business day immediately prior to the maturity date (i.e.
one year from the date of issuance of the Bonds or if such date is

not a business day, the next business day).

If the maturity date is extended or postponed pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Bonds, upon maturity of the Bonds on such
extended maturity date, the Company will pay to the holders of
the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of () 100% of the
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (i) interest accrued and
outstanding pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds;
and (iii) a premium of 15% of the principal amount of the Bonds

outstanding.

On 15 September 2017, Bonds with nominal value of
HK$33,400,000 were converted into 35,913,978 ordinary shares

with conversion price of HK$0.93.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

23. MR E S

KRR ZE—RNFNATHAETAHR
BEHF([EH]) - EFER=ZF—LF A
THOBE(EFNRIBAER—FEF
—N\FRNATHMHA - EBHFAIREFETH
HEZEEIBEmzEXH (BEHRER
BHIfERT — ek iax B EI e %R - Al
T—EAZXB)BEHEREARFZER
% - &4 & A51,000,000/8 7T © &5 0]
BJDEZ0.938 TR 554,838,708 %
B&AD o

WiEHREER KRR REFZAA
SAAEERATNSEAMZ S8 : (&5
REBEARSEZ2100% : (i)BIBEEFAIE
KNG 2 AT AT ¢ Ki)EFH
FEBARGE I TFI%RE > 8% 255
BIRESA  EEREI AR CE%A
(BN{E %3277 H Hie st — F ek fiwizz B H9 0
LR BN —EE¥R)AL -

i 2 H B AR BRAE 25 BV 6K AR A S e
B EFRNERLTEEDHE I HE
ARABAEFKEAXNHEERAT
BHEBENZ TR (VEFKEERSHEZ
100% + (i) MR ¥ 18 75 B 1R SR M2 {6k A 2 P =t
RARZAFE  RifEFREERNERLZ

15%)& (8 °

R—_ZE—+tFENA+HHE  BE
33,400,000/ T K & 51 A% E0.9378 7T
#1535 913,978% L imA% ©
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23. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 23.

On 29 November 2017, Bonds with nominal value of
HK$17,600,000 were converted into 18,924,730 ordinary shares
with conversion price of HK$0.93.

Mr. Ding, the Former Controlling Shareholder of the Company,
guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable
by the Company under the terms and conditions of the Bonds and
pursuant to a personal guarantee given by Mr. Ding.

The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

AR ES @)

R-ZZE—+tF+—HA=-+hLB @HE
17,600,000/8 T M EH IR E0.9378 T
1 /518,024, 730% I i@A% ©

ARAFHEBRRR T R EERARARE
B R SR RARIR T SE AR A0 (&
AFERZ RSN BB A

BHAEBIRBE-2—LF+=A
=+—BIEFEHEBHIILT :

HK$
BT
Liability component at 1 January 2017 RZZE—t+F—H—BZB8EHS 53,152,913
Interest charged (Note 10) (restated) B H (FisE10) (& ES) 9,489,683
Interest paid BERFE (5,409,052)
Gain on extension of the Bonds (restated) EREH WA (KET) (4,102,252)

Converted to shares during the year (restated) FRER AR (KET])

(63,131,292)

Liability component at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_A=+

—BZ&aERn -

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of 24.3% (restated) to the liability component.

REZRERD 2FE X HTIRER X

24.3%(#LES )T E o
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. BMARRE EMEMNFRE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#&&7)
Trade payables FETERFK 173,864 312,741
Accruals and other payables FEFTIE B &AM FE FRIE 6,778,124 6,650,009
6,951,988 6,962,750

The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: JEBRRAEREE DT ¢
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F—+tF
HK$ HK$
B TT BT
0 - 30 days 0Z30K 149,548 291,825
31 - 60 days 31E60X 23,292 10,764
61 — 90 days 61E90K 513 7,751
Over 90 days HRBIOK 511 2,401
173,864 312,741
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

24. BARARR HMENREA @)

FESHIR B M E Al 8 SRR R 20 AT #5140

T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$ HKS$
BT o
(Restated)
(geE5)
Accruals FEETIEE

Accrued staff costs JEETB TR 1,076,137 705,461
Accrued audit and professional fee ErtEZRREEER 1,321,700 1,280,000
2,397,837 1,085,461

Other payables HibESFRIE
Other tax payables HAbfER IR 408,147 3,329,773
Payables to hotel constructors FERDBEE A BFUE 236,561 378,510
Deposits e 391,620 202,216
Others HAh 3,343,959 754,049
4,380,287 4,664,548
Total accruals and other payables FERT1E B & H i FE{S FIHAAEE 6,778,124 6,650,009

Annual Report 2018
—E-N\FFR

143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= — =

25. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises at
the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreements
in 1 to 14 years (2017: 1 to 5 years). Provision is therefore made
for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be

—N\E+A=1+—HLLFE

ZUNEE N
B—tF:
BN ERME

25. HEEERFERE

RIBEETFRITNEERHGK - AEH
SHEB(—E+HF) (=
—EhF)EREAARED
SBEME - AikE 4R
HIE A A& R AN ARG AT MY R T 1T 1

incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement are as follows: - MEEEERBENESNT :
2018 2017
—B-N\F —+
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—A—H 4,512,635 3,795,516
Addition NS - 232,000
Settled due to termination of lease AEERIEMER (232,000) —
Change in provision for REFEEEREEE
asset retirement (2,107,062) -
Finance cost on provision for asset WA EERBENREKAR(KEE10)
retirement (Note 10) 173,072 190,469
Exchange differences PEH =% (149,470) 294,650
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2,197,175 4,512,635
Less: non-current portion B IEMENER Y (846,987) (4,280,635)
Current portion mENER D 1,350,188 232,000
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease payments

26. HEEE

Present value of
lease payments

HEMNR HENRERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F ZB-NF IZT—+F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(#e=31)) ¢ =2l
Within one year —FA 16,215,542 9,848,256 15,733,321 9,601,514
In the second to fifth years, FEFRF
inclusive (BIHEEEME) 18,031,655 6,627,151 15,566,408 6,160,656
After five years HFE 23,435,777 - 15,273,263 =
57,682,974 16,475,407 46,572,992 15,762,170
Less: Future finance charges W RIREEEA (11,109,982) (713,237)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 46,572,992 15,762,170
Less: Amount due for settlement 38l : +— A8 RB|HEE 2
within 12 months (shown under ~ FIEGIRRBAEET)
current liabilities) (15,733,321)  (9,601,514)
Amount due for settlement after ~ + —1E A& | HEE 2 F0A
12 months 30,839,671 6,160,656
Notes: BisE
(@) At31 December 2018, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.75% @ R-ZZE—N\F+—A=+—8  FHE
to 9% (2017: 4.75% to 9%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract BREEREAE475%ZE9%( =T —+F :
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 4.75%%29%) o FIENEHBHEIETE » X
SERAMmMAERATEMNERR
(o) Lease liabilities of HK$13,313,912 (31 December 2017: HK$NIl) are ) HEBE13313912BT(=ZE—+4F
related to leases with a related party. +-A=1+—8: &) H@EKHIEE
B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. BORROWINGS 27. 68
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt BT o
Current B

Borrowings from Current Controling 2k B IR T3 AR AR SR A9 15 7k

Shareholder (the “Current Controling ([ ZR{E#ERRAT R ME 7K )
Shareholder’s Borrowings”) (a) 10,000,000 -

Non-Current FERED

Borrowings from Former Controling & B T2 AR AR B A 30
Shareholder (the “Former Controlling ([ BT#EAXA% SR (E 2 |)
Shareholder’s Borrowings”)

11,860,063 16,935,781

21,860,063 16,935,781

(@ As at 31 December 2018, the Group has borrowings of
HK$10,000,000 (31 December 2017: HK$nil) from the Current
Controlling Shareholder. The Current Controlling Shareholder’s
Borrowings are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H &
SEEARBBEEERBRRZER
10,000,000 T (ZE—+F+=H
=t+—8:TEx)  BEZERER
ERREER - 28 RIRERMERE
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27. BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

On 30 June 2018, the Group signed an agreement with the
Former Controlling Shareholder, pursuant to which, interest
of HK$1,095,781 for the period from 2 June 2017 to 30 June
2018 and interest payable commencing from 1 July 2018 are
waived. A gain of HK$3,550,454 was resulted from the waiver
of interest on the Former Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings.
Since the lender (the “Former Controlling Shareholder”) was
a shareholder of the Company as at 30 June 2018, the gain
resulted from the waiver of the interest on the FS Borrowings
was recognised in shareholder’s contributions equity account.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has borrowings of
HK$11,860,063 (31 December 2017: HK$16,935,781), with
effective interest rate of 9% (2017: 7.3%), from the Former
Controlling Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on maturity as below.

27. 6E#)

(b)

R_ZE—N\F A=Z+H AEEH

ATEIRIRR 5T ek - IRIEZ % -
EA_f +tFRAZBE_ZT—N\F
NAZ=TBHRBEAF EA1,005,781%F
T REBZE-N\FtA—HENE
A B IER G - AT AR R (& 7
uﬂ%F$WAaﬂmm%n A

REH ([RHZERAR DR =T —N\F
/\)EJ—+E|7,%$ ﬂﬂx% .H'JJ{I X
A% SR8 KR B A BA G T B AR U &
PR B AR PR o

RZZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H ' =K
SEEARAAERBRRE 2ER
11,860,063 L (Z T —+F += A
=+—H :16,935,78187L) * B
FERBI%(ZFE—+tF : 7.3%) ° &
REEER R NERIHAERE
NN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Borrowings from Former Controling % &5 B2 BRI ER 2 & 50

Shareholder are repayable on: RATHEERE
1 June 2020 —E-FFA—H 2,912,049 6,280,000
27 August 2020 —E-FFNA-_1+LtH 4,752,237 5,651,398
27 December 2020 —ETF+ZA=++A 4,195,777 5,004,383
11,860,063 16,935,781
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. fR4
Number of
Shares Amount
B EE <5
Note HKS
B 5T BT
Authorised: JRIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BRAEEC.O1EIL(ZE—+
(2017: HK$0.01) each F 0.0 KT @Ak
At 1 January 2017, RZE—tF—H—-H"
31 December 2017, —E—+F+A=t+—8H"
1 January 2018 and —E-\F—A—HK
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+=—_A=+—H 780,000,000 7,800,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—HF—H 393,525,000 3,935,250
Issue of shares arising from BEIRESEEMNEITRG
conversion of the Bonds (@) 54,838,708 548,387
At 31 December 2017, RZBE—+F+-A=+—0H"
1 January 2018 and —E-N\F—-A—HK
31 December 2018 - N\F+=ZA=+—H 448,363,708 4,483,637

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

this BFR &K HIEAR AR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. I A< (&)

Notes:

(@ On 15 September 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$33,400,000 were converted into 35,913,978 ordinary shares with
conversion price of HK$0.93 per bond. Amount of HK$359,140 and
HK$36,873,750 (restated) were recorded in share capital and share
premium respectively.

On 29 November 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$17,600,000 were converted into 18,924,730 ordinary shares with
conversion price of HK$0.93 per bond. Amount of HK$189,247 and
HK$20,010,647 (restated) were recorded in share capital and share
premium respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
(i.e. share capital, share premium and other reserves) and includes
some forms of subordinated debts.

Wi

@ R-ZZT—tFNLA+HEHA BE
33,400,000/ ;T W & F IR MR BT RE
#0.938 L8 535,013,978 L @AY °
359,140 7T }.36,873,7505 7T (FE 7))

D RET AR KA DB o

R=ZF—+F+—A=+hAB EE

17,600,000 7t B f& # R AR (B B R &

#0.93 8 L8 518,924,730 L i@ A% ©

189,247 7T % 20,010,647 78 7T (KX &EFI))
D RET AR KA DB o

AEBERNEEN B RERENRE G H
B2E WABEB(LERABLRE TR
REKEH

REBIZL IR ERBELRSRE - ~5H
EREEAREE  WRARLEARRL R
BERRSBNSCMAAE - &7 #HHk
FRERGEE RSB EEABRREX
7 BITHRG - BERGD - BMAFE -
EOIREES L EEENRAER -

AEERERERFARREAL R REE
B - R SREFERAFARKE
KRS - AEFEDREERBRER SR
ReFEVE - ARREARZ IR
(BDRAS ~ Befn st (8 S EL bt ) AAK - 3F
BREBEANKXEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

29, RN R B AR R &R

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
—Z2-N\F —T—+F —E—+F
+=—A=+—-HBH +=ZA=+—H~H —B—H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&85E7)) (4=E75))
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIRE 14,668,964 11,633,912 35,149,168
Rental deposits HERe 1,393,545 = 1,794,895
Prepayments TEfSFRIE 185,844 = -
16,248,353 11,633,912 36,944,063
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other deposits AN RIE N E MRS 319,773 162,008 445,600
Rental deposits HExke - 1,794,895 =
Cash and cash equivalents REeRFEEFEY 226,718 320,618 216,369
546,491 2,277,521 661,969
Current liabilities REBEE
Convertible bonds A ES - - 53,152,913
Due to subsidiaries FERTBB A RIFIE 24 16 23
Accruals and other payables FEET B M M Al e 5R0R 1,367,630 1,638,713 1,047,200
Borrowings BE 10,000,000 = -
11,367,654 1,638,729 54,200,136
Net current (liabilities)/assets FRE(EE) EE (10,821,163) 638,792 (53,538,167)
Non-current liabilities ERBEBE
Borrowings BE 11,860,063 16,935,781 -
Net liabilities 8EFE (6,432,873) (4,763,077)  (16,594,104)
EQUITY R
Share capital R A 4,483,637 4,483,637 3,935,250
Reserves fEiE (10,916,510) (9,246,714)  (20,529,354)
Total deficit ke (6,432,873)  (4,763,077)  (16,594,104)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2019.

Approved by:

Yuan Fuer
RER
Director

EFE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

this BFR &K HIEAR AR A A

RZT-NF=ZA-t+LBEESSHE
RARHETIE -

BHIATALEL

Ye Shusheng

Mg ES

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E= —Z— \F+-A=+—HILFE
30. RESERVES 30. f#fE
(a) Group (a) &=KHE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein AEBRENSERES INIEREIE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss mAEHMEABARARGEERE
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement EFRAITR ©
of changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) QT
Convertible
Share bonds equity Shareholder’s Accumulated
premium reserve contributions losses Total
TRRES
R EE RS RFEE BB %

(Note (©)()  (Note (c)(iv)

(GEC N EE )
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

1 January 2017 as restated RZE—+F—H—H
(&=5) 204,694,080 4,301,492 - (229524.926)  (20,529,354)
Loss and total comprehensive FREER
loss for the year *HEBEE - - - (41,300,265)  (41,300,265)
Conversion of convertible bonds ERARES 56,884,397  (4,301,492) - - 52,582,905
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—t&+ZA
1 January 2018 as restated =t+-BR=-Z-\F
—A—B(EE7) 261,578,477 = - (270,825,191)  (9,246,714)
Loss and total comprehensive FABER
loss for the year FHEBLEE - - - (5,220250)  (5,220,250)

Waiver of interest on borrowings from
Former Controlling Shareholder

AR B HAE
AR

= = 3,650,454 3,560,454

At 31 December 2018

R-E-\&
+-A=+—-H

261,578,477 - 3,550,454 (276,045,441)  (10,916,510)

Annual Report 2018
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
3 to the financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds issued are split into their liability and
equity components at initial recognition by recognising
the liability component at its fair value which is determined
using market interest rate for equivalent non-convertible
bonds and attributing to the equity component the
difference between the fair value of the convertible bonds
and the fair value of the liability component. The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The equity component is recognised in the convertible
bonds equity reserve until the bonds are either converted
(in which case it is transferred to share premium) or the
bonds are redeemed (in which case it is released directly
to retained earnings).

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
taBR S EERERA

30. (=)
(c) BENMERBW

()

(i)

(i)

()

Bt (&

RERASHEREE - AR

B aENESAINIKTAR
AR - HEEREEEIRN RS
BEIRARBABREIBER

—RREHBET R HNERE -

E S 1

PE 3 5% 18 R R BB SO TS B 75
BREENABIINEZERS
P o % i TO AR IR B 75 R R B
AESFTE B AT R IE

AR
EEREATAIDR  AAE
(] A [ B /BB A R AR 1% A B 88 A
SRR RE RN &% A a2
o

] HE R (B 5 s o 1

EETIURKREFRVITER
i“ﬁ%ﬁ&%\% =K
A IIRFERAER TR E
%Zm%ﬂ%#ihgiﬁ%
ARERR - T Al AR &5 A E
HEREHSP A FEZERES
RER=ND - AEHD HiE
RS AT BR o FA4 AN
AmRkESEFEER B
ZE AR E S R R (R UL IER
TESERERDRE) KR
REHFEER (R ER THH
ETR@#K{F:I:{% 2] /ﬁﬁﬂ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. f#fw#)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (c) RENEERBNE)
(v) Other reserve (v) Atz
The other reserves represent the difference between the HihfEENEBERAR - B
nominal value of the issued capital of Legend Strategy BEBERATRNBERRA
Limited, Lai Ying International Limited and Triple Leaf AERARE=ZEGER a2
Limited, the then shareholders of Legend Strategy Limited EETRAEESEKRRQD R M
and the nominal value of the 135,000,001 shares issued PR RRREBITREE
and allotted to the shareholders of the above companies 135,000,001 % f& 17 E & 2 {8
by the Company. ZEFH o
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M. HAREE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8  r&£EW
contingent liabilities (2017: Nil). BEMEAZNAE(ZZT—LF &) -
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. ERAEME
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period REERRE AR EARFRFERAT

are as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+tF

HK$ HK$

BT PETT

Property, plant and equipment L E N ] 3,636,559 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —ZT— N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with its related parties during the year.

(a) Key management compensation

BAE S R %

B BREREMATHENRH S5
Baoh - AEEREREAT AR R
%0

() TEEEAEMHE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowance e TEREM 1,236,935 3,337,071
Pension obligations BREEFE 21,000 42,000
1,257,935 3,379,071

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions

(b) AEERFABUTEXEBRS

with the related parties during the year: RS-
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$ HK$
B 5E BT ST
Repayment of borrowings to the MR BB B
Former Controlling Shareholder 2,700,000 -
Hotel room revenue from related R A B RIS R B W
parties (i) 642,705 -
Rental expenses charged — 4 B 75 R
by a related party HEE 0] 644,353 =

(i) Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties.

(c) The Group had the following balances with the
related parties during the year:

()  RECEEE LR RO -

(c) AEERFEREBHAFEUTE
&

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

Note HK$ HK$

Bt BT BT

Other payables to related parties B th R {<F A Bk 75 5RIE (i) 3,073,836 =

(i) Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties. The balances arose
from the utilities and other operating expenses paid on behalf
of the Company by the related parties, for which they should be
reimbursed by the Company.

154 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

() RELHERLREB I OEGIE - &
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) As at 31 December 2018, the Current Controlling Shareholder

(e)

(f)

had made available a credit facility up to the amount of
HK$350,000,000 to the Company on normal commercial
terms or better to the Group. The borrowings drawn under
the Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility shall be
repayable on the date as set out in the individual borrowing
agreements and are interest-free and unsecured. The
Company may request for drawdown at any time prior to 15
November 2021. As at 31 December 2018, credit facility of
amount of HK$340,000,000 is available for use.

As at 31 December 2017, the Former Controlling Shareholder
had made available a credit facility up to the amount of
HK$20,000,000 to the Company under substantially the same
terms with the Former Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowings
which the Company may request for drawdown at any time
prior to 31 March 2018. As at 31 December 2017, there was
no credit facility used.

On 30 June 2018, the Group signed an agreement with the
Former Controlling Shareholder, pursuant to which, borrowing
interest for the period from 2 June 2017 to 30 June 2018 and
interest payable commencing from 1 July 2018 are waived.

3B.BEAIRF (&)

d »®

(e)

(f)

E2-N\Ft+-A=+—H" B
?kh%& M EIER S E A FR
AEBRHGERAARRIRESERS
350,000,000 8 THIEERMEREE -
RIEIR AR AR SR = B 58S ArieER A
BHIRSER B R LERE HER
W B 2% 8 KEREL - AfAAR]
R-E-_—F+—A+ABRIERE
SRR c R=ZE—N\F+_A=1+—
H - [##£42340,000,0007% JT I 1= B &t
EEBEAI o

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—H 5
P& % BR B AR % ER T AR AR BR S TR 3R
HESERAAQARRESERS
20,000,000/ TR EMEREE @ 7]
HARRR_Z—NE=A=+—H
AIBERF ERIZE - R=ZT—+&F+=
A=Z+—8 ARt EFHHEER
EEE o
"

ZE-N\FRA=TH FEEH
AR AR R %= 5] s - IRIBZ e -
RZE—tFAZHEZZT—N\F
NA-TABEMNERFE RBZ
Z— N\FtA—BREMNTERE
R o
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

—N\E+A=1+—HLLFE

34. WEBF B 2 7

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company acquired HE—ZT—N\F+-A=+—HLFE"

100% equity interest of Huizhou Hazens from a company controlled
by Mr. Yuan at a cash consideration of HK$1,222,359 (equivalent to

RMB1,000,000).

ARABIH—FEBERLEMZES 2R RK
EEMAEZI00%KE  BEREA
1,222,359 7T (#85  A K # 1,000,000

TT) °
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Huizhou BINE ER UGS B T 2 AT 3R & E K
Hazens acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: BEQATENT
2018
—E-N\F
HK$
BT
Net liabilities acquired: WEEm B RFE -
Property, plant and equipment W - B K& 4,394,675
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14,796,335
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIE © 2o RHE MBI EIE 10,306,423
Inventories FE 124,586
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSHIEE 646,196
Bank and cash balances HRITRIRE LS 206,101
Trade payables FESTBR IR (3,458,123)
Accruals, deposits received and other payables JEFHER - BElgRe MEMENFUR (13,058,322)
Lease liabilities HEaE (14,796,335)
(838,464)
Goodwill on acquisition RUEEER 258 2,060,823
1,222,359
Satisfied by cash B E Xt 1,222,359
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: A UK B T EE AR W3R 2 VAR ¢
Cash consideration paid BERNRESNRE (1,222,359)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WA e MRS EEY 206,101
(1,016,258)

Legend Strategy Internatlonal Holdings Group Company Limited
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34.

35.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Huizhou Hazens is
attributable to the Group’s ability to broaden the Group’s scope
of business in the hotel industry by expanding in various PRC
locations.

Huizhou Hazens contributed approximately HK$25,563,427 and
HK$11,035,240 to the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2018, total
Group’s revenue for the period would have been approximately
HK$45,547,168 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$7,686,900. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Legend Strategy International Limited
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
disposed Legend Strategy International Limited (“Legend
International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and

its subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$1.

The value of the assets and liabilities of Legend International

34.

35.

WEEHTB AR (#)

IR & TE BT A AR B T A A S )
B H R A E BB 2R E
B Hy o

BEMNEERKEAREREHR2ED
HifE 2 Bl B AN & B Wz Mom F B B A
25,563,427 7T & 11,035,240 7T °

WKEBER—_T—N\F—A—HB%K &
S EHE R S R REE X 5 45,547,16878
JC  MENEEE L &7,686,9007%8 7T ©
BEERMEHRGARAR - WIEAEEER
AIERMREGE REEEENRE -

HEME AT
(a) BB
2T - N\FEt+_A=+—HIF
E @ AEBHEARRG2ENB AT
WEBRBR AR ([HhEBER ) REKH B
nal - REBVETT -

EBERRE L E R MEEnER

disposed as at its date of disposal is as follows: BEERAEEEWMT
2018
—E-N\F
HK$
BT
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: A H & B & EFE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R 310,825
Other receivables H b pE kIR 2,692
Tax payable FES TR (1,003,703)
Other payables HAbfE FRIA (3,837,894)
Net liabilities disposal of EERERE (4,528,080)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve EmINE R E 750,970
Gain on disposal of Legend International 108 B e s 3,777,111
Consideration RE 1
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAMNIE SR LFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEMNRS RESEEY =
Amount of consideration receivable ERRESE 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ —E— \F+_-_A=+—HILFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Sure Esteem Limited

Sure Esteem Limited (“Sure Esteem”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, held 15% equity interest of
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Company Limited (“Yuelai”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. On 25 August 2017,
the Group disposed 100% of the issued share capital of
Sure Esteem together with 15% equity interest of Yuelai at a

consideration of HK$8.

The value of the assets and liabilities of Sure Esteem disposed

as at its date of disposal is as follows:

35. HEMB AT (#)

(b) Sure Esteem Limited

KR RH— 2 & M B2 7 Sure
Esteem Limited ([ Sure Esteem | ) #
BRINEREEERAB (K]
KRN EEKEB AR )15%HE -
R-ZE—+FNA-1+HH £EE
AR B8 7T & Sure Esteem2 277

B ZN100%5E R 15 2R 15% A

Sure Esteem R E B E HEHE K

Sure EsteemBEN BEEBENT

2017
—T—+F
HKS
S TT
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: R HE B EHH & EFE :

Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 7,390
Tax payable FEFIIR (332,639
Other payables HAb B FRIA (5,403)
Net liabilities disposal of EEaEFRE (330,652)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve ERINE IR E (1,678,206)
Gain on disposal of Sure Esteem & Sure Esteemfyizzs 2,008,866
Consideration RE 8

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: B EEAEMIR ML
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRERIBCEEY 7,390
Amount of consideration receivable BRRESE 8

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Sure Esteem Limited (Continued)
The effect of change in the ownership interests of Yuelai on the

equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017 were summarised as follows:

35. HEME AT @)
(b) Sure Esteem Limited(#)
HE-_T—+tF+-_A=+—ALF

B RRBEBRESNARRHEEA
FERERS R BT

2017

—ET—+tF

HK$

BT

Increase in non-controlling interest FEPEAR ARG AN (808,645)
Consideration received BHRE -
Movement in equity = E) (808,645)
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36. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 36. MERBELENEESH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising TR ANEBFANREETHEENAEG
from financing activities during the year: 23
Total liabilities
Lease Convertible from financing
liabilities Borrowings Bonds activities
METE
EEN
HESE & BB ES aELE
HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZE—+F—A—B(EE5) 28,254,365 - 53,152,913 81,407,278
Change in cash flows Benegy (15,386,244) 16,500,000 (5,409,052) (4,295,296)
Non-cash changes R
- Interest charged (restated) —MEXH (FE5) 1,354,102 435,781 9,489,683 11,279,566
— Conversion of convertible bonds —ERRRES(LET)
(restated) - - (63,131,292) (63,131,292)
— Gain on extension of the Bonds —EREF WA EET)

(restated) = = (4,102,252) (4,102,252)
Exchange realignment B A% 1,539,947 - - 1,539,947
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F+ZA=+-HRK

and 1 January 2018 —Z-\5—H—H 15,762,170 16,935,781 = 32,697,951
Change in cash flows Rene® (15,657,949) 7,300,000 = (8,357,949)
Non-cash changes RSB

~ Interest charged —MEXH 1,774,807 1,174,736 = 2,949,543

- Acquisition of a subsidiary —WE—HEHB AR 14,796,335 - - 14,796,335

— Additions of lease liabilities —THEAGEN 31,219,306 - - 31,219,306

- Exchange differences —ERER (1,321,677) - - (1,321,677)

— Waiver of interest on borrowings from — — B2 AR SR

Former Controlling Shareholder BHFERE - (3,550,454) = (3,550,454)
At 31 December 2018 N—E-N\F+-A=1+—H 46,572,992 21,860,063 - 68,433,055

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RHB AR 2 RE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZZB—NFE+ZA=+—8 " HBAF
follows: JEEMT

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Issued and ownership
Company name and operation paid up capital interest Principal activities
RalEAYe ERITR BB ARE
NRAR RS E ERRER Ak FEEE
Huizhou Hazens East Resort Travel Services  The PRC RMB1,000,000  100% (indirect) Hotel operations
Limited
NG ERPERERBERAR i AR¥1,000000  100%(HE)  BEEE
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000  100% (indirect) Hotel operations
A BEIER AR A hE 800000087  100%(F%)  EE4E
Shenzhen Modern Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$1,000,000  100% (indirect) Hotel operations
A EEREERARAA hE 100000087 100%(#) AELE
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$5,000,000 85% (indirect) Hotel operations
AR REEERAA] e 5,000,000/7C 8o%(ME)  EEEE
Grand China Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share  100% (indiirect) Cost centre
PEERARAA B 1BTEER  100%(EE)  RAHD
Net Media Finance Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 ordinary shares ~ 100% (indlirect) Money lending
BEEREEERAT] Bk 20,000,000 @R 100%(FE)  HE
» Wholly owned Enterprise N OBERE
* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise * INEBE
# Partially owned Foreign Enterprise t INEER B
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which EREFINEAREEEE EERBBEE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. FEFENWBRAIFE °
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38.APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
thia Bl = EEAR B R A A

38. fit EM B ®EK
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFPBEE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

AEEBERETBRERNRENREERA

last five financial years is as follows: BRMEMT :
RESULTS 4y
Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-A=t—-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T—+F —E—RE —T-RF —T-mEF
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(% E51)
Revenue Wiz 45,547,168 16,281,691 17,654,630 19,884,379 29,700,841
Loss before tax BREIATE IR (2,077,308) (42,569,647)  (100,490,047)  (123,405,540) (60,178,163
Income tax (expenses)/credit FriEHi(FIsz), % (3,110,248) 408,536 2,200,814 (430,064) 8,634,678
Loss for the year FRER (5,187,556) (42,161,111) (98,289,233) (123,835,604 (51,543,485)
Attributable to: BN AL
Owners of the Company KREHEEA (4,378,134) (42,089,318) (98,289,233)  (123,835,604) (51,543,485)
Non-controling interests FEETI M (809,422) (71,793) - - -
(5,187,556) (42,161,111) (98,289,233)  (123,835,604) (51,543,485)
Annual Report 2018
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HEEMBERE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E - &R IFE4IH#ER

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —T—tF —E—RE —T-RF —T-mF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

(Restated)

(F&E5)
Total assets BERE 99,168,969 66,306,683 81,090,605 125,659,405 162,087,990
Total liabilities BELE (79,810,012) (45,236,598) (68,263,683) (18,291,715) (27,913,274)
Non-controlling interests FEVETI M 75,146 (742,983) - - -
19,434,103 20,327,102 12,826,922 107,367,690 134,174,716

The Group adopted HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” and early
adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” for the year ended 31 December 2018.
HKFRS 9 (2014) and HKFRS 16 have been applied retrospectively. As
a result, the results and the assets and the liabilities are restated for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Details of the adoption of new financial
reporting standards are disclosed in note 2 of the financial statements.

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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RZZ—N\F+ZA=1+—BILtFE ' F5E
ERATEMHEREENFIHR(—FT—MF)
(BT A |IMERRABTBMHEHREERF16
SIHE ] - B BRELENESR(—F—N
FIRBRYBHRELRNE16RDEYER
At BE—F—tF+-_A=1T—BLFE
ZEREREENABBEEET - ARERAFH
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